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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: This hearing is

          3  back in session. And we're now joined by the

          4  Committee on General Welfare, Chaired by Council

          5  Member Bill deBlasio, and the Committee on Women's

          6  Issues, Chaired by Helen Sears.  And we will now

          7  hear from the Commissioner of the Administration for

          8  Children's Services.

          9                 Commissioner, do you have a prepared

         10  testimony?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, I do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do we have it?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: In the

         14  interest of time, I'll try to summarize what's here.

         15  Good afternoon Chair Weprin, Chair deBlasio, Chair

         16  Sears, Members of the Finance, General Welfare, and

         17  Women's Issues Committees.  I'm John Mattingly, the

         18  Commissioner at Children's Services.  I thank you

         19  for the opportunity to discuss the Fiscal Year 2007

         20  Executive Budget.  I'll discuss the Budget

         21  modifications since we talked at the Preliminary

         22  Budget hearings, and provide you with an update on

         23  our progress in implementing our child welfare

         24  action plan, Safe Guarding our Children, and our

         25  Child Care Strategic Plan, Rethinking Child Care.
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          2                 Children's Services 2007 Budget

          3  provides for an operating expenses of $2.4 billion;

          4  $738.3 million of which are City funds.  Capital

          5  commitments of $56.3 million, of which $54.7 are

          6  City funds, are also provided in the budget.

          7                 Now in my Preliminary Budget

          8  testimony in March, I briefed the Committee on what

          9  we think is a far- reaching action plan to continue

         10  building a child welfare system that fully

         11  represents our commitment to protect New York City's

         12  children from harm.  Since the announcement of this

         13  plan, Children's Services has made significant

         14  progress, but much work remains to be done.

         15            Now more than 400 new child protection

         16  workers have begun in the field so far this fiscal

         17  year, and we are on track to hire an additional 125

         18  child protective workers by the end of June, meeting

         19  our target which we set earlier this year for hiring

         20  525 new protective workers this fiscal year, a

         21  remarkable figure.  The addition of this staff will

         22  support our efforts to reduce case loads as our new

         23  staff leave training units and begin to take on a

         24  standard case load.  We have 977 workers in DCP

         25  today, and by July, we'll have 1,100.  That's
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          2  compared to somewhat less than 900 last year.

          3                 As you are aware, case loads spike

          4  earlier this year, as a result of a nearly 40

          5  percent increase in abuse and neglect reports.  We

          6  are currently conducting an ongoing analysis on the

          7  number of reports, and we plan to adjust our hiring

          8  model to reflect this analysis.  Our preliminary

          9  hiring model indicates that we will need to, and

         10  therefore we will, hire 400 workers during Fiscal

         11   '07.

         12                 While we continue to recruit and

         13  train new staff to address increased case loads,

         14  we've also instituted a number of interim strategies

         15  to manage current workloads.  These strategies have

         16  included:

         17                 Redeploying 200 child welfare

         18  specialist staff from our central office to field

         19  offices

         20                 Redeploying central office managers

         21  from the Division of Child Protection to the field

         22  offices to help workers and managers handle the

         23  workloads efficiently and effectively

         24                 And constant monitoring and

         25  calibration of caseloads by top management in DCP to
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          2  adjust and transfer cases as needed, to ensure that

          3  cases are dispersed as evenly and appropriately as

          4  possible.

          5                 While these interim strategies have

          6  helped our field offices cope with this surge in

          7  reports, caseloads remain high, and we must continue

          8  to aggressively hire and train, until we reach

          9  targeted levels.

         10                 We've also undertaken a number of

         11  concrete improvements, which aim to support our

         12  workers more effectively. Interpretation services,

         13  for example, are now available via telephone for use

         14  in any investigation.  Child protective workers can

         15  now use their cell phones, which have speaker phone

         16  capacity, to access an interpreter in over 150

         17  languages in less than five minutes.  This expands

         18  our interpretation services and allows for immediate

         19  access where needed.

         20                 We have also made more vehicles

         21  available to staff to ensure transportation.  In

         22  addition, a group of Children's Services workers are

         23  currently testing various hand- held devices, by

         24  which workers can access the State database,

         25  CONNECTIONS, remotely, and consequently, be able to
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          2  spend more time focusing on child protective

          3  investigations and less time on paperwork.

          4                 Finally, we're working in

          5  collaboration with the Family Court on an effort to

          6  increase the number of court dates that are "time

          7  certain", thereby reducing the amount of time

          8  workers, all workers, our own workers and the

          9  private agencies workers, need to spend in court.

         10                 Now the Mayor's Executive Budget

         11  baselines many of these new supports, with $2.4

         12  million in total funding.  These new supports

         13  include $1 million for increased supplies for child

         14  protective field offices.  Nearly $1 million for

         15  cell phones. $250,000 for the purchase of Metro

         16  cards and an additional $225,000 for vehicle

         17  maintenance.  As these supports take effect in our

         18  field offices, our staff will begin to experience

         19  some relief, after a very challenging five months.

         20                 A core commitment of our plan, the

         21  Child Safety Plan, is the creation of ChildStat, a

         22  performance monitoring tool to support the routine

         23  assessment of child protective teams at all levels

         24  of the organization.  Beginning in June, Children's

         25  Services will convene a deputy borough director each
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          2  week, for a ChildStat session.  Each deputy director

          3  is a head of a zone, which is the geographic area

          4  composed of several community districts by which we

          5  organize our field protective staff, including

          6  oversight of all child protective managers,

          7  supervisors, and specialists.

          8                 While there are currently 14 zones in

          9  the City, it is our plan to increase the number of

         10  zones to 19 in the coming year.  An increase which

         11  will enable a more concentrated approach to our

         12  oversight for deputy directors, and promote more

         13  neighborhood- based programming, since each zone

         14  will cover a smaller geographic area.

         15                 In addition to this design work,

         16  Children's Services has taken a number of additional

         17  actions to support the launch of this key

         18  initiative.  On April 28th, field managers, deputies

         19  and directors, and central office staff joined in a

         20  training session to discuss a sample of data as a

         21  way to build the skills needed to carry out a full-

         22  scale ChildStat.  We have worked closely with the

         23  State Office of Children's Services to gain better

         24  access to State data.  And ensure that data needed

         25  to support ChildStat are readily available.  This
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          2  has included a commitment from the State to build an

          3  operational data store.  This data store will

          4  increase our access to data and enable us to produce

          5  reports directly from the State data of record.

          6                 Finally, we have scheduled trial runs

          7  of ChildStat throughout June with borough directors,

          8  deputy directors, and child protective managers.  We

          9  anticipate that these sessions will be essential for

         10  familiarizing our staff with the use of ChildStat

         11  data and case information.  At the end of these

         12  trial runs in June, the first round of ChildStat

         13  will begin, and take approximately ten weeks to

         14  complete.  During this first round, each session

         15  will focus on data in which there have been prior

         16  reports, where services have been provided in

         17  indicated cases, the size of caseloads, and the

         18  evenness of case assignments among workers.

         19                 This assessment will be enriched by a

         20  review of approximately two cases per session that

         21  will look at whether child protective staff has

         22  fully considered the significance of prior reports;

         23  whether all investigative tasks, contacting family,

         24  interviewing all children and collateral contacts

         25  have taken place; whether services arranged upon
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          2  completion of the investigation are appropriate,

          3  given case findings; and the quality of the case

          4  decision made.  Children's Services Division of

          5  Quality Assurance will assist us in the case

          6  reviews, and work in partnership with the Division

          7  of Child Protection to address any post- review

          8  deficiencies noted in the data and case reviews.

          9                 Later rounds of ChildStat will add

         10  additional data elements, including levels of repeat

         11  maltreatments, and whether steps can be taken by CPS

         12  staff or others to reduce those rates. Fiscal Year

         13  2007 Executive Capital Budget allocates $11.5

         14  million in Capital funds to support the construction

         15  of technical aspects of this system.  And

         16  parenthetically, I will be visiting ComStat tomorrow

         17  morning to get a personal view of how it works.

         18                 Safety and Risk Assessment and the

         19  Safety Solutions Team.  Working with the State,

         20  Children's Services has begun a series of seminars

         21  for our child protective supervisors and managers,

         22  focusing on critical decision making, and safety and

         23  risk assessment.  These one- day seminars are

         24  designed to enhance the skills of our supervisors

         25  and managers to support front- line staff in making
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          2  critical safety and risk decisions.  In addition,

          3  all child protective specialists will receive a

          4  safety and risk refresher training starting in early

          5  June.  This time will be spent reviewing the tools

          6  and requirements for analyzing safety and risk, and

          7  making decisions regarding a child situation.

          8                 Finally, the vision and the training

          9  academy are working to strengthen our ongoing on-

         10  the- job support and training for all child

         11  protective staff.

         12                 To ensure that these skills are

         13  supported and strengthened in the field, we have

         14  deployed nine national child welfare experts in our

         15  field offices, to provide on- site consultation and

         16  to model effective supervision and management in

         17  child protection.  These national experts are also

         18  providing ongoing feedback on how we can improve our

         19  child protection efforts.

         20                 Children's Services has also made

         21  progress on leveraging law enforcement expertise in

         22  our field offices.  Susan Morley, my Senior Advisor

         23  for Investigations has joined the agency, and is

         24  leading our efforts to improve coordination between

         25  ACS and the NYPD.  Susan is here this afternoon.
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          2  There she is.  Thank you Susan.

          3                 In the Executive Budget, ACS has

          4  received $1.9 million for Fiscal Year 2007 to

          5  support the development of this office, including

          6  $1.2 million in baseline funding for 20 law

          7  enforcement liaison positions, and one coordinator.

          8  Included in the Fiscal Year 2007 allocation, is

          9  funding for 20 vehicles to support our law

         10  enforcement liaisons.  We expect to have law

         11  enforcement experts available at every field office

         12  this Summer.

         13                 Last fiscal year, ACS announced its

         14  reinvestment initiative, which allocated $9 million

         15  in new funding to support preventive services.  This

         16  investment has now resulted in new specialized

         17  preventive services that focus on at- risk teens and

         18  babies born with a positive toxicology.  These

         19  enhanced preventive services are located in specific

         20  high- need communities across all five boroughs, and

         21  are linked to existing general preventive and family

         22  rehabilitation.  That's substance abuse treatment

         23  programs. Both programs offer comprehensive wrap-

         24  around services, with mental health, domestic

         25  violence, and substance abuse consultants available
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          2  on site, to provide crisis intervention,

          3  assessments, and referrals.

          4                 Each enhanced "teen" provider is

          5  staffed with a teen specialist, who holds an MSW and

          6  with two case planners, each of whom carries a

          7  caseload of 15 families.  Each "babies" provider is

          8  staffed with a MSW specialist, two case planners,

          9  each with a caseload of ten families, and two parent

         10  advocates or aides.  Both service models were

         11  designed with significant input from our Child

         12  Protection field offices, and all referrals will

         13  originate in the field offices, a design element

         14  intended to deepen connections between our Division

         15  of Child Protection and Preventive Services

         16  providers.  This program will continue in Fiscal

         17  2007, and is seen as a beginning towards

         18  strengthening general preventive services and

         19  funding.  This is only a beginning of strengthening

         20  general preventive services.

         21                 Children's Services also has made

         22  available an initial $9 million to our preventive

         23  services providers to support programs in high- need

         24  communities this fiscal year.  We plan to continue

         25  this funding in Fiscal Year 2007.
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          2                 Children's Services has made

          3  significant progress, we think, on the

          4  implementation of our Child Care Strategic Plan

          5  since the Preliminary Budget hearing.  You will

          6  recall, I believe, that we presented the plan

          7  publicly last Fall.  It represents, we think, an

          8  historic commitment to strengthen and improve early

          9  child care and education services in New York City.

         10  We expect that as this plan is fully implemented,

         11  our City families will benefit from a stronger and a

         12  more comprehensive early childhood care and

         13  education system.

         14                 As reflected in the Budget,

         15  Children's Services and HRA will fully integrate the

         16  City's child care system in the coming fiscal year.

         17  A major step, we think, in the creation of a

         18  seamless system of early child care and education.

         19                 Beginning in July, HRA's child care

         20  services will transfer to ACS.  A new operating

         21  model will be launched at four HRA job centers this

         22  Summer, as a first phase of our implementation.

         23  Children's Services will place our staff at HRA job

         24  centers to process child care, offering a full range

         25  of child care referral, counseling, and enrollment
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          2  services.  We will assess and refine the new

          3  operating model in collaboration with HRA before

          4  expanding it to other job centers.

          5                 This model is designed to assist each

          6  family in making an informed choice regarding the

          7  child care arrangements, reduce the number of times

          8  families have to return to the job center to change

          9  their child care arrangement, increase access to

         10  Head Start, Universal Pre- Kindergarten, and Out-

         11  of- School Time services, and to improve employment

         12  retention.

         13                 We expect an integration ultimately

         14  will result in fewer care transitions for children,

         15  thereby increasing the stability and continuity of

         16  the care children receive, and positively impacting

         17  children's development.  The City also expects that

         18  fewer child care disruptions will lead to improved

         19  engagement and work activities for parents receiving

         20  or transitioning from public assistance.  The

         21  Executive Budget reflects this integration with

         22  $244.6 million in child care subsidy funding, moving

         23  over to Children's Services from HRA.

         24                 HRA job center child care and central

         25  child care functions including payments, the
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          2  Hotline, and attendance, and staff, will also move

          3  over to Children's Services this fiscal year. The

          4  Executive Budget provides $3.4 million in funding

          5  for 124 staff transferring to Children's Services in

          6  Fiscal Year 2007.

          7                 Now the management information system

          8  functions for child care will stay at HRA for now.

          9  Children's Services anticipates that these functions

         10  will remain until the City completes construction on

         11  a $12 million capital project to develop a new child

         12  care information system that will track and monitor

         13  early childhood educational services across all City

         14  agencies, including child care, Head Start,

         15  Universal Pre- K, and Out- of School Time.

         16                 At the March hearing, Children's

         17  Services detailed the efforts of its Bronx

         18  community- based enrollment project.  Since the

         19  launch of this pilot, the Bronx has achieved full

         20  child care enrollment, an enrollment increase of

         21  more than 12 percent.  A major step forward, I

         22  think, in the child care history in the City. This

         23  growth outpaces enrollment in all the other

         24  boroughs. Children's Services will be working in the

         25  coming months to make a community- based enrollment

                                                            18

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  an option everywhere throughout the City.  To

          3  support this effort, Children's Services has

          4  developed and circulated a vastly simplified

          5  eligibility application form for child care.  This

          6  form has already been translated into Spanish, and

          7  will soon be available in nine other languages.

          8                 We have also trained and assisted

          9  child care programs in community- based eligibility.

         10    So they can receive and pre- screen eligibility

         11  applications from parents at their program. This

         12  assists programs so they can better manage

         13  enrollment, and enables parents to avoid making an

         14  extra eligibility appointment at an ACS resource

         15  area, the way it has been up to now.  In the Bronx,

         16  64 programs are currently pre- screening eligibility

         17  applications, and the remaining 12 programs are

         18  being trained to do so.  The Bronx resources area

         19  has introduced expedited processing to further

         20  streamline the enrollment process.

         21                 The last component of the strategic

         22  plan for child care we would like to brief you on,

         23  is the creation of a unified set of child care

         24  standards Citywide.  To support the creation of a

         25  performance measurement system, Children's Services
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          2  has reached jointly established goals with the DOE,

          3  secured foundation support to fund a consultant team

          4  of child care experts, and brought the consultant

          5  team on board.  We anticipate that it will have a

          6  finalized set of program standards by August.  Once

          7  the standards are in place, assessment models will

          8  be tested over the next year.

          9                 Finally, Children's Services would

         10  like to update you on the City's transition of

         11  school- age child care  --  school age care  --  to

         12  the Department of Youth and Community Development.

         13  As the Council is aware, ACS will end all of its

         14  school age contracts on September 8th, in accordance

         15  with the City's OST initiative.  In preparation for

         16  this, ACS has taken a number of steps to ensure that

         17  program transition, that the programs transition as

         18  effectively as is possible.  These steps have

         19  included the following: Workshops for contracted

         20  programs on budgeting and staffing; Training for

         21  programs for sites on reprogramming space to convert

         22  school age classrooms, so they can serve younger

         23  children.  Some of you may recall a key piece of our

         24  utilization review indicated that the greatest need

         25  for child care in the City is for very young
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          2  children.  And letters to our programs to inform

          3  them, over the past year and a half, of the

          4  transition process.

          5                 Now we will also hold a workshop for

          6  our programs on running and after- school program

          7  through a private pay and voucher based payment

          8  model, should they choose to move in that direction.In

          9  addition, ACS continues to collaborate with DYCD to

         10  ensure the effective transition of children and

         11  families.  To support this, ACS has participated in

         12  a series of OST parent forums, which took place

         13  during April.  We are also working with our current

         14  contracted programs to ensure that families are

         15  aware of their preferred enrollment status for OST

         16  slots, and that parents have received letters from

         17  both ACS and DYCD about the transition and the

         18  parent forums.  Finally, ACS will be working over

         19  the Summer to make vouchers available to any family

         20  that desires it.

         21                 Because vouchers must be redeemed

         22  within a set timeframe, we plan to work through our

         23  contracted programs beginning in July to enroll

         24  children for vouchers.  We have begun our outreach

         25  to our providers to make them aware of this approach
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          2  through a series of program meetings held during the

          3  first week of May.

          4                 In conclusion, I hope it's clear from

          5  my testimony that we are fully committed to

          6  achieving our mandate of protecting at- risk and

          7  abused children, and providing high- quality child

          8  care to families of the City.

          9                 Thank you for allowing me to discuss

         10  these important items with you this afternoon.  And

         11  I welcome any questions you may have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you

         13  Commissioner.  In addition to my Co- Chairs deBlasio

         14  and Sears, we have a number of other colleagues that

         15  have joined us.  We have Council Member Gale Brewer,

         16  from Manhattan; Council Member James Sanders Jr.,

         17  from Queens; Council Member Robert Jackson, from

         18  Manhattan; Council Member Annabel Palma, from the

         19  Bronx; Council Member Thomas White Jr., from Queens;

         20  Council Member Letitia James, from Brooklyn.  And I

         21  know there will be other Council Members joining us.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: If I could

         23  Chair, I'd like to introduce Susan Nuccio, who is

         24  our Finance Director; Ladab Shaheen (phonetic), who

         25  is our Executive Deputy for Child Welfare Programs;

                                                            22

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  and Ajay Chaudri, our Deputy for Child Care and Head

          3  Start.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  The

          5  Speaker and I have been you know  --  and this is

          6  more my frustration than anything else  --  have

          7  been making the point with the Mayor and New York's

          8  Management and Budget, and other members of the

          9  Administration, to finally end what has been

         10  historically called the "Budget Dance" at City Hall.

         11    And that of course, refers to items that are

         12  always adopted by the Council in June, but not

         13  baselined in January.  In your case, and I was happy

         14  to hear from your testimony about all the items that

         15  were baselined. Unfortunately, it shouldn't take a

         16  tragedy to end a budget dance in a particular

         17  agency.  You know, there's no reason why  --  and

         18  again, I'm not really expecting an answer, it's more

         19  my expressing my frustration to who ever will listen

         20  in the audience, that it really makes it so hard to

         21  plan ahead for various agencies that depend on money

         22  that the City Council provides at the end of budget

         23  negotiations each and every year, whether it be for

         24  personnel, or for programs.  And it makes it so hard

         25  to plan ahead and as I said, it shouldn't take you
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          2  know, a tragedy before the Administration sees the

          3  benefit of baselining those programs that we all

          4  know are going to end up being funded in the end.

          5  So I just had to get that out and that's what I was

          6  thinking when you were testifying as to the various

          7  items in your testimony that were baselined.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Once again, due

          9  to the agreement on adding additional money by the

         10  Administration as well as the City Council

         11  emphasizing the need for additional resources to

         12  prevent a future tragedy such as the Nixzmary Brown

         13  case, some of the suggestions seem pretty common

         14  sense, that we had discussed, and you mentioned $1

         15  million for cell phones and Metro cards.  You know,

         16  those items are you know relatively simple.  It

         17  should have been you know, instituted a long time

         18  ago

         19                 To get into some other issues, in

         20  March, 2006, ACS announced a goal of bringing the

         21  systemwide child protection caseload down to an

         22  average of 12.  And to reach this goal, the agency

         23  committed to hiring 525 child protective workers,

         24  and I know you touched on it in your testimony, and

         25  of course, by bringing one of the issues that came
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          2  up you know, post Nixzmary Brown, was the caseload

          3  that child protective workers have had, and made it

          4  hard for follow up, and to do the most effective job

          5  that they can do, and should do, and must do.  So my

          6  question for you is, how are we doing with the

          7  hiring of the additional case workers?  And how many

          8  case workers have left ACS in the past six months?

          9  And how do these numbers compare with the number who

         10  left during the period the year before?  And what

         11  are we doing as far as the hiring process?

         12  Specifically, in the area of child protective

         13  workers?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.  Well

         15  we are on target to hire those 525.  With the

         16  addition of 175 between now and the end of June.  So

         17  we have achieved our goal there.  We have been

         18  losing workers at a higher attrition rate than we

         19  would like.  It's up around 28 percent now.  On

         20  average, over the last few years, it's been around

         21  22 percent.  But really, when we get where we need

         22  to go, it's going to be below 20 percent.  That's

         23  where we should have it, because turnover hurts us

         24  all.

         25                 Now the caseloads have continued to
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          2  spike, beginning in January, because the reports

          3  have spiked beginning in January. So since December,

          4  we've seen more and more cases coming in the front

          5  door that needed investigation.  We've found that in

          6  some ways, that's good news, because we've found a

          7  large number of youngsters who were at risk, were in

          8  danger, especially groups of brothers and sisters

          9  who were  --  who had been hurt badly.  So they came

         10  to our attention for the first time, because of the

         11  public's interest in recent cases, and that's

         12  actually good news. But it places a great stress on

         13  an agency that needs to train its workers before we

         14  can increase our numbers.

         15                 We project this coming year, a 35

         16  percent attrition rate, just to be conservative.

         17  With a 35 percent attrition rate, we will, however,

         18  be able to keep the  --  move the caseloads down to

         19  12 and keep them there, because we'll be hiring 400

         20  more workers.  To the extent that we need more,

         21  we'll hire them, because we have to have caseloads

         22  at a more reasonable level.

         23                 The City has a history here for some

         24  time, of keeping caseloads low, compared to national

         25  standards.  I think we should be proud of that.  But
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          2  we have, since really June of last year in Queens,

          3  and since January everywhere, our caseloads have

          4  been going up, and we must, we must address this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What do you

          6  attribute the huge spike in attrition rate, 35

          7  percent?  That's much higher than it's been in the

          8  past few years.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's 28 now.

         10  So 35 was what we're going to project for, so we

         11  hire enough workers.  We're being conservative and

         12  projecting higher than we have right now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Oh, I see.  So

         14  the idea is you're projecting a higher number to

         15  allow for the hiring of additional case workers.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.  But

         17  the rate is still much too high, and the reason for

         18  that, primarily, is that this work now, with 25

         19  cases per workers, when we'd like to have 12, is

         20  just very, very difficult.  And people who were

         21  thinking about whether they wanted to finish their

         22  term working here, after three or four years, are

         23  now quite certain that they want to.  That's mostly

         24  what's happening out there now.  So if  --  well,

         25  when we get enough workers on line, we'll begin to
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          2  see that come down. That's not the only thing we

          3  have to do.  We have to improve the working

          4  conditions of everybody in the field offices.  I

          5  have a lot of initiatives focused on that.  But

          6  those two things together, we think will get us to

          7  the point where we can get attrition back down below

          8  20 percent.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do you think some

         10  of the negative publicity that was attributed, the

         11  criticism of case workers, as a result of the

         12  Nixzmary Brown case, and possibly some other cases

         13  that may have come before it or after it,

         14  contributes to people wanting to leave, and say, you

         15  know, that it's not worth it?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It has two

         17  edges to it.  In fact, the new workers coming on

         18  board are more seasoned, more experienced, have more

         19  experience in the world, and are coming to us

         20  because they want to get involved to help these

         21  children and their families.  It's really quite

         22  remarkable.  We have had no trouble whatsoever

         23  attracting capable, experienced people who want to

         24  do child protection.

         25                 On the other hand, on the front lines
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          2  today, we've had workers who have been verbally

          3  downgraded when they get on the bus.  We've had

          4  workers whose children say to then, what's going on

          5  where you work?  So there's pressures out there that

          6  our workers really shouldn't have to face, because

          7  they're going to be walking into those potentially

          8  dangerous circumstances every day.  But because of

          9  what's happened, they have faced them, and that has

         10  hurt us, I think.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Thank you.

         12    So as many people are leaving, you're probably

         13  getting as many people coming in to the system who

         14  feel that something has to be done, that this is

         15  God's work, and we need you know, more people out

         16  there in the trenches, saving lives.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  That's

         19  encouraging.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm just going to

         22  touch on one other area, and then I'm going to turn

         23  it over to my Co- Chairs and my colleagues, because

         24  I know they have a number of questions.  And of

         25  course, your agency having been in the spotlight,

                                                            29

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  you know, throughout this budget process early on,

          3  you know, may require some more questions than even

          4  some other agencies.

          5                 This has come up not just in the

          6  Family Court, but as we go through the budget

          7  process each year, with attorneys on the criminal

          8  side, the civil side.  You know, the whole issue of

          9  you know, legal aid and 18b, and hiring of

         10  attorneys, and you know, one of the things that

         11  constantly come up all the time in the past, was the

         12  shortage of attorneys, particularly in Family Court.

         13    And of course, again, with some of the safeguards

         14  that we're putting into place, I know you're in the

         15  process of hiring 32 additional Family Court

         16  attorneys, specifically to reduce the attorney

         17  caseload, because one of the criticisms have been

         18   --  and not just with the Family Court, but in the

         19  criminal court, and you know, Supreme Court as well,

         20  and civil court  --  is that if the caseload is so

         21  great, it's very hard for that attorney, no matter

         22  how professional they are, or how qualified they

         23  are, or how outstanding they are, to really pay the

         24  proper attention to each and individual case.  And

         25  when you're dealing with some of these cases in the
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          2  Family Court especially, in the abuse and neglect

          3  area, it's so important that the attorneys pay the

          4  individual attention to the client as well as the

          5  extended families that are involved.  And it's very

          6  hard to do that when you have such a large caseload.

          7    So obviously, the purpose of hiring the additional

          8  attorneys is to reduce that caseload, and to solve

          9  that problem. Can you give us an update on how many

         10  Family Court attorneys you currently have, and the

         11  recruiting and the hiring?  And how does that

         12  compare to the numbers say a year ago or two years

         13  ago?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.  Sorry,

         15  unlike the case workers, I'm not as up to speed on

         16  the number of attorneys that we have.  We are hiring

         17  60 attorneys next year.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sixty when?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Next year.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Next year.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.  Versus

         22  the 30 who we hire normally.  So we're going to  --

         23  we treat  --  this Administration will treat Family

         24  Court, Legal Services attorneys as front line staff,

         25  because I think they really are.  And they can't be
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          2  over weighted.  So our commitment is to keep their

          3  caseloads below 150, where they have been, and I can

          4  get you the numbers for the total numbers of

          5  attorneys that we have, in the next few minutes, I

          6  hope.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, yes.  If

          8  you can provide that now, or later, as well, that

          9  would be helpful.

         10                 How do the salaries, starting

         11  salaries, you know, advanced salaries of the Family

         12  Court attorneys compare to say Legal Aid, or the

         13  District Attorneys, or even the Corporation

         14  Counsels?  How do the salaries compare?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Roughly the

         16  same as all of those different attorneys.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  I'm going

         18  to turn it over to Chair deBlasio.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you very

         20  much Chair Weprin.  I want to thank you and your

         21  staff, and also our fellow Chair, Helen Sears and

         22  her staff for all the work that went into preparing

         23  for this hearing.  As well as Counsel of General

         24  Welfare Committee, Jackie Sherman, and our Finance

         25  and Policy folks, Peter Bruno and Frai Reo
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          2  (phonetic) and our new Finance person, Erin

          3  Feinstein.  Welcome to him, and thank you to

          4  everyone for helping to prepare for today.

          5                 Commissioner, I think we have to say

          6  at the outset, we have to express our appreciation

          7  for the work that you've done, the work your team

          8  has done, and the aggressive way in which the

          9  Administration has responded to what can only be

         10  called a crisis over the last six months.  We

         11  certainly appreciate what we saw in the Executive

         12  Budget.  It's a big step in the right direction.  I

         13  think there are a number of very real outstanding

         14  issues that we want to look at today, nonetheless,

         15  because I think the dialogue with Chair Weprin

         16  points out sort of how far we've come and how far we

         17  have to go simultaneously.  So I'm going to ask

         18  questions, but I want to say at the outset, I

         19  appreciate the progress, and I think you know it's

         20  our job to push harder for more progress.  And we

         21  all agree that you know, every ounce of our energy

         22  matters here, to try and get at helping each child.

         23                 Now the first thing that jumps off

         24  the page to me is that you noted this impressive

         25  increase in the amount of reporting that's happening
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          2  from the general public.  Tragically, since Nixzmary

          3  Brown and Qashawn Browne, but still, it's had a very

          4  positive impact from what you're telling us.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I'm a little

          7   --  I'm pleased but surprised at the same time,

          8  that we're not doing more to amplify that.  To tell

          9  the world that.  And I'm really not aware of any

         10  efforts so far to make clear to the general public

         11  of New York City that they answered the call, and

         12  it's had a positive impact on kids already.  So I

         13  want to remind you that people need to hear that.

         14  They need to be reminded not just in the moment of

         15  crisis, but throughout, to keep calling in those

         16  reports.  And they need to be shown that they have a

         17  real impact, so they will keep doing that.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's an

         19  excellent point. As you probably know, we have been,

         20  for the past 18 months or so, been doing publicity

         21  campaigns, buses, subways, radio, about various

         22  things you should do, or you can do to protect your

         23  children.  So the next phase of this effort, which

         24  will be this Summer, will be devoted to that sort of

         25  message to the community, to stay aware, keep in
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          2  mind we are there to help families, but also to

          3  protect children, et cetera.  So it's an excellent

          4  idea.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Well I'm

          6  pleased you've been doing it.  I'm saying honestly,

          7  I don't think we're all feeling it the way we might.

          8    And I think it actually should have been front and

          9  center in the testimony, if it is front and center

         10  of the efforts of the agency.  So it's not  --  this

         11  is not a cosmetic matter, obviously.  I think this

         12  is exactly the reinforcement the public needs to

         13  keep reporting, and to keep erring on the side of

         14  caution, and picking up the phone.

         15                 Now at the same time, you talked

         16  about what you're trying to do with the number of

         17  case workers.  Again, we applaud the additional

         18  staffing, but I'm troubled by the fact that the

         19  attrition rate is high, and going up.  I appreciate

         20  your honesty, but it also makes me wonder if you're

         21  hiring levels do actually keep up, and then we all

         22  know that a new staffer needs to go through their

         23  learning curve, so there are efficiency questions.

         24  So I might ask a couple of sort of very immediate in

         25  a row points here.  One is, are you actually going
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          2  to be able to get to the staffing level you want

          3  anytime soon?  I mean, you're talking about June

          4  finishing your hiring process, but if your attrition

          5  is rising simultaneously, it sounds like you dip

          6  right back down.  And simultaneously, I ask you,

          7  what are we doing to change the atmosphere?  I know

          8  it's very, very hard work.  And we all know it's not

          9  compensated the way it might be.  But I'd also heard

         10  that there's been a lot of dissatisfaction among the

         11  folks who do this work, and certainly, the example

         12  you just gave, you know, they're hearing it from

         13  their kids.  They're hearing it from the people on

         14  the bus, this negative feedback, when in fact,

         15  they're the folks doing this important front line

         16  work.  What are you doing to help the folks that do

         17  the day to day work feel that they are being heard

         18  and taken consideration of, in the work of the

         19  agency, so that they will want to stay?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: First on the

         21  numbers question, we are not going to stop even slow

         22  down, in terms of our bringing on new staff.  So at

         23  the end of June, when we have 1,100 workers, and as

         24  I anticipate we still will have higher attrition

         25  rates than we have had, until we get past these
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          2  increased caseloads.  So we'll keep hiring, and we

          3  plan to hire 400 more in the course of the coming

          4  year.  So whatever happens, this Administration will

          5  see to it that we get those caseloads down where

          6  they need to be.  Will they all be at 12?  No.  But

          7  they'll be down there in the range of an average of

          8  12 to 15 for all of our workers.  We're not going to

          9  change our commitment to that.  And we'll keep at

         10  this until we get there.

         11                 In my experience, having seen a

         12  number of these events in various cities around the

         13  country, the most important thing you have to do

         14  first is get the work load down.  If you don't do

         15  that, and you do a bunch of other things, it won't

         16  work.

         17                 Now on the other hand, you put your

         18  finger on a very important matter, which is our

         19  morale in the field offices has got to get better as

         20  the caseloads get better.  And we're committed to

         21  seeing that happen through a wide variety of

         22  actions.  First of all, we are going to highlight,

         23  with resources, our commitment to the field offices,

         24  the work that happens on the front lines, being the

         25  most important thing at the agency.  Too often in
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          2  these big public agencies, we have a lot attention

          3  paid and a lot of resources going into the central

          4  office.  One Fifty William has been the way it's

          5  been referred to here in New York.  But this has

          6  happened everywhere.  And if you're not careful, the

          7  work that's really the important thing, which is

          8  what happens in the field, doesn't seem as

          9  important.  Well we're going to make it as important

         10  as  --  it's going to lead this agency.  So we need

         11  to work on ways  --  which we are looking at exactly

         12  right now  --  to reward everybody in the field

         13  offices in different and better ways than we have up

         14  to now, to strengthen our managers' ability to build

         15  teams.  It's teamwork among the worker and her

         16  supervisors that makes this work bearable.  And we

         17  have to do better at encouraging that and supporting

         18  that without giving up the accountability that we

         19  need to hold our workers to, not to make the right

         20  decision every time, none of us could do that.  But

         21  to make sure that we do it right, the way we all

         22  know it needs to be done.               We're also

         23  working  --  we just had a meeting last week  --

         24  with our union, and we are going to put together a

         25  joint effort with them to look at everything from
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          2  how we handle the accountability question, right

          3  through to excess paperwork that we can get rid of.

          4  We're going to set up teams to work on those issues

          5  as we go forward.  Nothing is going to be better

          6  overnight. But we will get there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: We all are

          8  deeply concerned about accountability at all levels.

          9    And even as I'm saying to you, obviously, we

         10  expect you to do everything you can to improve that

         11  morale situation, so you have the kind of staffing

         12  you need going forward, you know, I hasten to add,

         13  with rigorous accountability for everyone at every

         14  level.  But I do think it's crucial.  I certainly

         15  have gotten the sense that a lot of the folks doing

         16  the front line work are not necessarily feeling

         17  heard about their day to day work.  And I would just

         18  note just like a Comstat or ChildStat system, is

         19  accountability a tool.  It's also a tool for

         20  listening to what's working and what's not working.

         21  And I think that should be an experience that every

         22  case worker has, that someone is listening to their

         23  experience.  But I am concerned, as you play this

         24  out, in fact, you know, your honesty says we're not

         25  going to have the case load reduction as soon as we
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          2  would like.  So it's a little bit of a chicken and

          3  egg situation.  We don't have case load reduction as

          4  soon as we'd like.  That's a further disincentive

          5  for people to stay on the job.  It's tough work.

          6  There's still a certain amount of demonization

          7  that's occurred. We're telling the public, call in

          8  the cases, but unfortunately, sometimes, the folks

          9  who are working on the cases are not portrayed

         10  positively, so that's also a disincentive to the

         11  public to call in the cases.  I mean, we're in a

         12  little bit of a circular situation.

         13                 Now, in all of the announcements made

         14  related to the budget, there was a commitment to

         15  getting down to the case load number of 12.  You're

         16  saying honestly now, 12 to 15 average.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh no.  I'm

         18  not changing that.  It should be 12 average.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Well when do

         20  we get to a hard 12 average?  Not a 12 to 15.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I can't give

         22  you an answer to that as yet.  We do believe, and

         23  it's  --  I want to not be too pessimistic about

         24  this.  Those caseloads are going to be coming down

         25  this Summer quite dramatically.  They have to and
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          2  they will. When we will get to 12, I cannot predict

          3  right now.  But we will be in a much more reasonable

          4  range by the end of this Summer, and we will be back

          5  where we were by early next year.  But we need to

          6  get to 12, and we're going to keep at it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All right.

          8  All I'm saying very simply Commissioner, is this has

          9  been an extraordinary effort by all involved, to

         10  focus resources to solve the problem.  And I think

         11  we have every right to say to you, you know, when do

         12  you think it will be solved?  And if there is a

         13  question mark, is it because there is a resource

         14  gap?  Because if in fact, you're saying you give me

         15  every dollar in the world, I can't solve it because

         16  I have more in fundamental morale and other

         17  problems, that's  --  I would hear that.  But it

         18  sounds like there is sort of a grey area there on

         19  whether you have the resources to actually get this

         20  caseload down to 12, which you have said repeatedly,

         21  is the national gold standard.

         22                 We're probably the most complicated

         23  and difficult place in America to do this work, as

         24  you know.  So if we're really going to go down to

         25  12, what will it take to get to 12?  And when do we
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          2  get there?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'll walk

          4  through this cautiously, but directly.  First of

          5  all, keep in mind that we need to do at least six

          6  weeks of training for these workers.  We have

          7  doubled the number of staff we're turning out, and

          8  we've speeded up some of the training process, but

          9  we will never  --  as long as I'm here anyway  --

         10  back away from the need for this intensive training.

         11    So that takes time.  During this Summer, you will

         12  see a fall- off, it undoubtedly won't go back to

         13  what it was before, but a fall- off  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: You say where

         15  it was before. Just clarify that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: A fall- off

         17  in the number of reports we're receiving.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: So we will be

         20  in a position where 400 more workers will step in.

         21  They will get one case a week.  We have to get them

         22  in a training unit working forward, so they don't

         23  get overwhelmed right away.  So they don't

         24  immediately take up those 20 cases that they might.

         25  We shouldn't do that. We'll just drive people out
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          2  faster.  So between the two things, many more

          3  workers, as many as 400 next year, and we'll have

          4  1,100 on board, an unprecedented number for us, by

          5  July.  And the reports slowing down during the

          6  Summertime, we will be in a much better place at the

          7  end of this Summer.

          8                 Now we can get to an average of 12 by

          9  early next year, I believe.  And we haven't been

         10  there for a long time.  So I don't think we need to

         11  say to ourselves, we must be perfect within three

         12  months.  Because we could get there, but the results

         13  will not be good by in terms of who we recruit, how

         14  much we train them, how much in- service they get.

         15  We don't want to do that.

         16                 So we have to get these caseloads

         17  down.  We will get them down.  But there isn't magic

         18  to this, it's just sort of hard, difficult work.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Let me

         20  just ask one more question on this, and one other

         21  question.  And then I know my colleagues have a

         22  number of questions.  Then I'll come back at the

         23  end.

         24            But I don't want to say there's been a

         25  lack of truth in advertising here, because I think
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          2  everyone in this process on the ACS side has been

          3  pretty forthcoming throughout these last difficult

          4  months.  But I do feel like that's a different

          5  message than what we heard previously, to be honest.

          6    Because no one is belittling that these things

          7  take time, and there's certainly a quality versus

          8  quantity dynamic here.  But you're talking about a

          9  year  --  what you just said, beginning of next

         10  year, means basically a year since the death of

         11  Nixzmary Brown, which it's tragic that that has to

         12  be our guidepost here, but it is.  And again, I'm

         13  asking you, does that mean you have the resources

         14  you need, if it takes that long?  Are you saying

         15  that this is as good as it possibly can be?  Or are

         16  you saying in fact, that there are still some

         17  barriers in your way that could be overcome if you

         18  had additional support?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We have the

         20  resources we need.  We're using them to the maximum

         21  extent that we believe we can and should.  And keep

         22  in mind, the caseloads around the country are

         23  between 20 and 30.  The Child Welfare League

         24  standard is 15. So again, sometimes perfection is

         25  the enemy of the good.  Let's get this thing turned

                                                            44

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  around, and let's get to 12, because then we will be

          3  the best in the country, and let's stay there.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Let me turn

          5  your attention to ChildStat for a moment, which is

          6  honestly very closely related. And I'm very, very

          7  pleased that you moved in this direction, and I was

          8  concerned about the timing, and I think I've gotten

          9  some reassurance that you know, we're getting a much

         10  more substantial jump forward next month than what I

         11  understood previously, so I appreciate that.  But

         12  what I'm a little unclear about is how much this

         13  mirrors the Comstat model for success  I'm glad

         14  you're going to see it, but it seems to me, Comstat

         15  works  --   very bluntly  -- Comstat works because

         16  senior people have their careers and their

         17  reputations on the line.  And again, we want

         18  accountability at every single level of the agency.

         19  But the buck has to stop at the higher levels of the

         20  agency, and I think that, in fact, will give

         21  confidence to everyone from the front line on around

         22  the agency, to see that.

         23                 Now what you described here  --

         24  certainly there are some senior folks involved,

         25  borough directors et cetera  --  but again my
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          2  impression from Comstat is the very highest levels

          3  of the Police Department were involved.  I don't

          4  know if it was Chief of the Department or Chief of

          5  Patrol, or what level, but very, very senior

          6  Citywide officials of the Department have been a

          7  part of that process, which brings universality and

          8  accountability.  And no one in the room doubted that

          9  if their information wasn't good, what it could mean

         10  for their situation.

         11                 So are you mirroring that?  Or are

         12  you doing sort of the "light" version of that, and

         13  making it more localized?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No light

         15  version.  This works.  We should do it right.

         16  Zeinab Chachine, who is our Executive Deputy

         17  Commissioner for Child Welfare, will chair each of

         18  these sessions.  I will attend these sessions.

         19  Perhaps not every one, but regularly.  And the top

         20  leadership of the agency will be there.  And the top

         21  leadership in the field offices, including both

         22  borough directors and deputy directors will be

         23  there.  We will, as we go through the rest of this

         24  year, be able to bring to bear more and more data

         25  points that we can then look at in order to assess
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          2  how we are doing.  But we also are going to do what

          3  the Police have done, and look at individual cases

          4  in depth, so we can see what may be behind some of

          5  the statistics.

          6                 So we're looking at doing Comstat not

          7  like, but the way it needs to be done.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And a related

          9  point, obviously, in the Police, because of the

         10  promotional system, which is so systematic and

         11  straight forward, I think again, the consequences

         12  are clear.  I don't mean that everything surrounds

         13  peoples' careers.  There are other concerns here,

         14  and other motivations, but let's face it, that's

         15  been a very effective part of Comstat.

         16                 In your agency, how are you going to

         17  portray to your mid- level managers, and more senior

         18  managers, what success or failure through this

         19  process means?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Initially  --

         21    well of course, keep in mind, there have been

         22  major overhauls in our field office leadership

         23  staff, since Nixzmary Brown, that's going to

         24  continue, because I think we need to strengthen all

         25  of our staff, including our managers.  But having
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          2  said that, we are going to work with everyone for

          3  everyone to learn how to use data to improve the

          4  work of their staff.  So it's going to take some

          5  time, as we build the capacity on the part of our

          6  deputy directors and directors in the boroughs, for

          7  them to learn this.  But this will keep going and

          8  every ten weeks, we'll be coming back to talk with

          9  people regularly.  And people will be expected to

         10  have changed and learned as they went forward.

         11                 You must be tough- minded but fair in

         12  this work, and that's what we expect to do.  But you

         13  don't want to give people the message that they are

         14  stupid, they don't know what they're doing. We want

         15  to give them the message, let's learn together, how

         16  to use performance data to do our jobs better.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I agree.  I'll

         18  just say editorially, on the end of this

         19  questioning, that yes, but people also have to

         20  understand failure is not acceptable, considering as

         21  much as with the Police Department, you know, a

         22  single moment of negligence can mean a child's life.

         23    So I assume that kind of sense of the consequences

         24  will permeate the process.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: You betcha.

                                                            48

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: My colleague

          3  Chair Sears, do you have a question?  Okay, Chair

          4  Helen Sears.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you.

          6  Welcome, it's good to see you Commissioner.

          7                 First I wanted to thank my Chairs,

          8  David Weprin.  I serve on the Finance Committee.

          9  And Co- Chair, Bill deBlasio, and all the staff,

         10  because it really takes unbelievable work when you

         11  have these joint meetings, and what Finance has to

         12  do.

         13                 I just want to follow up on a couple

         14  of things, and I'll be very short, so that we can

         15  turn them over.  You said that you were going to

         16  increase the zones from 14 to 19, by adding five

         17  zones.  I don't know when you plan to do that.  And

         18  did the 400 additional staff include those five

         19  additional zones, to staff that?  So maybe I'll let

         20  that go and you can answer that for a moment.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.  The

         22  400 that we'll be hiring next year are case workers,

         23  and we will be deploying them more geographically.

         24  Let me put it that way, because we'll have, with the

         25  addition of five zones, smaller geographic areas.
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          2  But those aren't new staff for new zones.  We want

          3  to keep people who are trained and experienced in a

          4  given area, there.  But we want to make their area

          5  somewhat smaller.

          6                 The vision is, in the coming three

          7  years, that we will continue to do that, so we can

          8  have small enough community based field offices, so

          9  that the day care director down the street, or the

         10  neighborhood settlement house director down the

         11  street, can get to know the CPS people who work for

         12  ACS, can help them do their job better, can let them

         13  know about families at risk sooner.  And can bring

         14  them into the partnership that usually exists in

         15  neighborhoods and community collaboratives  So

         16  that's where we're headed.  This is a first step in

         17  that direction.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: For those that

         19  leave, and you were discussing that with Councilman

         20  deBlasio, the  --  when you train someone, and you

         21  need six weeks, and you have to have  -- and you're

         22  hoping for 400 additional that have to be trained,

         23  so I don't know, how large is your training class?

         24  And how many of those 400, in order to reduce the

         25  time, because you're going to need substantial
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          2  number of weeks, over 66 probably, in order to train

          3  those.

          4                 So what is the average length of stay

          5  for those that you train?  And the reason I'm asking

          6  that is, where do they go when they leave?  Do they

          7  change professions?  Or are you looked at as a

          8  superb training grounds, and then they move on

          9  someplace else?               COMMISSIONER

         10  MATTINGLY: There are a number of questions there.  I

         11  think first  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: All with one

         13  issue, though.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.  Each

         15  training class is 25.  That hasn't change, we've

         16  just added to the number of classes. So instead of

         17  having two classes in a team, we'll have four.  We

         18  had to beef up our training, and the State has

         19  stepped in and helped us with additional trainers as

         20  well.  So we're able to do more training sooner than

         21  we have been.

         22                 Workers, when they leave training, go

         23  into training units with a special supervisor, and

         24  gradually build their caseloads up as they learn on

         25  the job.  That's an integral part of training.  Just
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          2  six weeks is not enough.  We have to do training on

          3  site with people who really know the work.

          4                 And Child Welfare generally, we've

          5  been in a position, I think, where workers will

          6  oftentimes come and spend three, four, five years

          7  learning this work.  It's difficult work. It's the

          8  work for people who are deeply committed to it.  And

          9  there's a certain percentage of staff who will then

         10  move on to other careers in social work usually.

         11  There's also a group of people who stay 20 years

         12  with you.  We have plenty of both of those.  But we

         13  also have too many in the past three to four years,

         14  who have stuck with us only 18 months or so.  And

         15  that's the group we want to have better trained and

         16  better able to handle what they're going to be

         17  facing, because they just learned the job at best.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: That's right.

         19  That's absolutely right.  Hopefully, you will be

         20  able to really work with that, because you trained

         21  them, and they're with you such a short time. When

         22  you have to start that process all over again, so

         23  you're really not getting the benefits of their true

         24  experience in doing that.

         25                 You said that you held OST forums for
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          2  those parents that would be in that transition.  How

          3  many forums did you have for how many parents?

          4  Because the last time you were here, there was that

          5  issue of how did you reach out, so I think that

          6  that's kind of like a follow up to your last meeting

          7  here.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'll ask Dr.

          9  A.J. Chaudri, our Child Care Deputy to speak to

         10  that.

         11                 MR. CHAUDRI: Councilwoman Sears, we

         12  held a total of five forums in April, right before

         13  we testified  --  right before we testified  --

         14  right after we testified in March.  Approximately

         15  1,000 parents attended these forums.  There were

         16  five in four of the boroughs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay.  So of the

         18  school age classrooms that closed last year, how

         19  many were involved in the OST?  Do you have any

         20  idea?

         21                 MR. CHAUDRI: Of the ACS school age

         22  classrooms that closed last year, which were

         23  approximately 70, 30 of those became DYCDOST

         24  classrooms.  And additional 40 were school age

         25  classrooms that closed.  A fraction of those, about
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          2  a third, chose to run voucher child care in those

          3  classrooms.  That's a basic breakdown of what

          4  occurred last year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay.  I may be

          6  asking a very hot question, but I'm not sure.  But

          7  I'm going to ask it anyway.  What enables DYCD to do

          8  what you have done?  Why is this transition to DYCD

          9  for an agency that has many difficulties themselves?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I think

         11  that's  the kind of question you ought to ask them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: And I'm not asking

         13  you to talk about  --  because we get asked that

         14  question.  Or I do.  And I we will do that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The City's

         16  commitment though, is to build a much larger and

         17  much more flexible system of after- school child

         18  care.  And also education.  And I think as the

         19  system gets developed, it will grow more and more

         20  into something that we can all be proud of.  It's

         21  going to be very difficult during this transition

         22  period, that's why we have worked to try to get it

         23  as long as it has developed, so we'll be going

         24  through this coming September.  The transition will

         25  be difficult.  I think the City's overall plan is a
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          2  wise one.  Exactly how it's going to get done and

          3  get played out, I can't speak to that, because DYCD

          4  is  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay.  And I just

          6  one last comment, and I'll turn it back over to

          7  Chair deBlasio.  I would agree with the Chair that

          8  there has been so much negativism wrapped around the

          9  workers, and that needs to really to change, because

         10  that negativism is punishing them.  Punishing people

         11  who are doing a good job.  And they're over- taxed,

         12  and they're really overworked because of how you had

         13  to  --  why you need to reduce that caseload.  And

         14  it's very unpleasant to work in an environment where

         15  they're steeped in that, they're like they're being

         16  punished for work that they do, and do well, because

         17  there are things that happened, and you're trying to

         18  make those gaps smaller and smaller. And I

         19  understand that.

         20                 I would think that the effort to talk

         21  about the quality of your workers, the attention and

         22  the training needs to be highlighted considerably

         23  more.  I really do, and I support Chair deBlasio on

         24  that.  Thank you.  Thank you very much Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Council Member
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          2  Letitia James.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you Mr.

          4  Chair.  And thank you for your indulgence.

          5                 Commissioner Mattingly, I'm going to

          6  join the chorus and just state at the outset that I

          7  too believe that the calls for your resignation were

          8  totally out of  --  inappropriate.  I mean, I

          9  support all of  --  all that you do for the

         10  residents of the City of New York, particularly the

         11  children.  But I do have my concerns and there's a

         12  series of questions that I have.

         13                 Let me begin with preventive

         14  services.  Last year, in 2006, you reallocated $9

         15  million in funding.  And I hope this question was

         16  not asked in my absence.  And if it was, then I'll

         17  move on.  Okay.  Nine million dollars was

         18  reallocated in 2006.  I guess it was obviously,

         19  unfortunately in response to the Nixzmary Brown

         20  case.  It's my understanding that in 2007, that $9

         21  million is not continued in this year's budget.  Is

         22  that a true statement?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No, not

         24  exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.
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          2  Elaborate.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There's

          4  actually two $9 million that get confused.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: So you will

          7   --  you may recall, it's maybe inside baseball  --

          8  we were able last year, and it will continue this

          9  year, to break out $27 million for after- care and

         10  preventive.  That's $18 for after- care and $9 for

         11  preventive. That's baselined.  It came from

         12  anticipated savings, especially from fewer

         13  congregate care days, residential treatment care

         14  days. That's in place.  Last January, we added $9

         15  million to preventive only.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: For a broad

         18  range of agencies, to get the money so they could

         19  deepen their services, get their caseloads down,

         20  lower, whatever it took.  That money came from our

         21  budget.  It is still in our budget.  Some of it is

         22  being taken from under- utilization, because we've

         23  told our preventive and our child care agencies,

         24  we're paying you to serve X number of children.  If

         25  you serve 60 percent, we're going to move those
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          2  slots where they will be used.  And some of that,

          3  it's not where we got all of the $9 million by any

          4  means, but it's in the budget again this year.  It

          5  is my personal commitment that I have made to the

          6  preventive agencies, that that $9 million, in

          7  addition to what they've gotten in the past, will be

          8  there, as we go through the course of this year.

          9  There isn't a spot that you can point to and say

         10  there it is  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: But we will

         13  deliver it, because we need prevention to get strong

         14    --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But

         16  Commissioner, if it's not in the Executive Budget,

         17  when will we see it?  When we pass the budget?  When

         18  can I identify it in the budget?  Or will it be

         19  hidden?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's already

         21  there, but it's in the preventive line item already.

         22    That's where we got it from. It may even be more

         23  than just preventive.  And that's where we're going

         24  to get it from in the coming year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  In that
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          2  regard, we talk about this additional staffing, but

          3  for me, preventive services, mandated preventive

          4  services, is absolutely key.  And let me  -- God

          5  bless you  --  and again, I have to point to the

          6  most recent case that I've experienced in my

          7  district, the unfortunate tragedy of Amber Sedeek,

          8  where the father of the child who was arrested for

          9  that tragedy, the father was trying to get

         10  preventive services for his son.  And unfortunately,

         11  could not get preventive services for his son.  And

         12  now, the mother and the father are being charged

         13  with abuse and neglect.  The child is in foster care

         14  program, and for a very, very long time, he was

         15  trying to get preventive services.  He was doing the

         16  right thing.  He was a single father raising his

         17  three children, I believe.  One is out of state, two

         18  of them  -- yes, one is out of state and the other

         19  child was living with his -  was being cared for by

         20  his grandmother as well as this child in question.

         21  Again, preventive services is absolutely key.

         22                 As someone who used to practice from

         23  time to time in Family Court, I recognize the

         24  importance of preventive services. I also recognize

         25  that part of the delay is that when judges mandate
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          2  preventive services, you can't get them for your

          3  client.  And so additional staffing in great, but

          4  mandated services is absolutely key.  Particularly

          5  mental health, drug addictions, drug problems, and

          6  the assorted list of other issues related to

          7  prevention.  Can you speak about that a little bit?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure. I

          9  certainly agree with you about prevention.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And can you

         11  also talk about PINS.  Again, going  --  I don't

         12  want to speak about the case a lot, I have other

         13  issues.  But again, the fact is, is that the State,

         14  as you know, took away a parent's ability to submit

         15  to the PINS, Person in Need of Supervision.  This

         16  child obviously was a PINS candidate.  And unless

         17  you surrender your child, you're no longer eligible

         18  to get PINS services, which is why the only recourse

         19  I guess that the courts had, were basically to file

         20  a neglect petition against the parents.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.  It's

         22  pretty convoluted, but yes.  First of all, about

         23  this tragedy, I really don't want to speak to it,

         24  because of course, people's views of what happened

         25  when  --  are a little bit different.  And this is a
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          2  family in great crisis that we are really working to

          3  do the best that we can for.  And that we struggle

          4  to have the right outcome, which the father has

          5  agreed, which is intensive services for the family

          6  that's in the home, and then therapeutic foster for

          7  the little eight year old.  So I'd just like to

          8  leave it at that, because  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, fine.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: On the other

         11  hand, about the question of preventive services.

         12  Preventive services, as opposed to child care,

         13  after- school child care.  Preventive services were

         14  in that family.  And I'm bringing that agency in to

         15  meet with me to find out further why we did what we

         16  did, and why we didn't do what might have been done.

         17

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: If you can give

         19  me a status report at some point in time, I'd

         20  appreciate that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'd be glad

         22  to.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Which brings me

         24  to my next question.  The grandmother.  The

         25  grandmother was caring for these two children.  As
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          2  you know, there's a significant number of

          3  grandmothers who are mothers again.  They need

          4  respite care.  They need services as well.  What in

          5  the budget, what in the Executive Budget speaks to

          6  providing additional services for grandmothers who

          7  are mothers again?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, in

          9  situations where relatives, especially grandmothers,

         10  but also aunts and uncles, and even nieces and

         11  nephews.  In those situations, we have available,

         12  through our foster care budget, supports for

         13  relative caregivers, who step in to take care of

         14  their relative's children who are dependent, abused,

         15  or neglected.  For those families that do it

         16  informally, without our knowing about it, which is a

         17  good idea most of the time, those services that we

         18  have available, aren't there. What we are doing, as

         19  we  --  in fact, we're starting this with some pilot

         20  projects in July  --  what we are doing, is we are

         21  moving to community centers, offering them a small

         22  amount of resources initially, and asking them to do

         23  two or three things. One of which is to go

         24  throughout the neighborhood and find out all those

         25  families.  Foster families who work for us,
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          2  relatives who work with our children, and also those

          3  grandmothers you're speaking of, and reach out to

          4  them and build support efforts around them, as the

          5  caregiving families who stepped up in our

          6  neighborhood to do this.  That's not the answer, but

          7  it's I think, the first step along the way.  These

          8  are treasures in the neighborhoods, that the

          9  neighborhood needs to know more about, and that I

         10  think, the neighborhood will offer a lot of support

         11  to, once we get this project underway.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I recognize the

         13  informal care. Is this part of the whole Kinship

         14  Program?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, Kinship

         16  can be either formal or informal.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: If the child

         19  has come into our care or custody because she's been

         20  abused or neglected, and we place with a relative,

         21  then we put them on track for a fast licensure and

         22  are able to provide them with foster care

         23  reimbursement, the same way we do with other foster

         24  families.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Active
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          2  preventive services, Beacon programs.  Have we

          3  baselined preventive services for Beacon programs?

          4  Is that in the Executive Budget?  And do you

          5  anticipate that those funds will be restored?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: As I thought,

          7  Beacons are not in our budget at all.  We have a

          8  small item for COLAs that we pass through to them.

          9  But they're in DYCD.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: DYCD?  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 Commissioner, you know, I've been

         13  calling you in the last two weeks, because two day

         14  care centers in my district are closing.  I'm not a

         15  big fan of OST, particularly since OST, as far as

         16  I'm concerned, overlooks under- served communities

         17  that are surrounded by prosperity.  That they look

         18  at zip codes which don't tell the true picture of

         19  what's happening in a designated community.  I speak

         20  to you all the time about Ingersoll Whitman and

         21  Farragut.  Poverty.  Seventy percent unemployment.

         22  Surrounded by million- dollar brownstones.

         23  Overlooked consistently, because they are in an

         24  under- served community, and because they are

         25  surrounded by Metrotech, and these million- dollar
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          2  brownstones, divided by Myrtle Avenue.

          3                 Irving Place, I know you're working

          4  with Irving Place.  David Bradley.  They've been

          5  calling me repeatedly.  The question is, under-

          6  enrollment.  I want to know about this pilot project

          7  that you're doing in the Bronx, which I understand

          8  you've increased enrollment ten- fold, a hundred-

          9  fold.  You're doing a good job.  And I think that we

         10  can do that in my district, particularly targeted

         11  towards preventing the closing of Irving Place, as

         12  well as David Bradley.  And if we look at, perhaps

         13  Head Start, and going full day for Pre- K, as well

         14  as OST, all in one building, we could achieve the

         15  objective of keeping it open and increasing their

         16  bottom line.  What are your thoughts?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'll say a

         18  few words, and then AJ can speak more specifically.

         19  What you describe is exactly where we're headed with

         20  our child care  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Can we start in

         22  my district?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm not sure

         24  that we can start in your district, but we can talk

         25  about it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Politics is

          3  local.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.  The

          5  issues we struggle with, with those particular

          6  facilities  --  and we've increased the availability

          7  of slots for younger children in other facilities

          8  served by the same agencies  --  and the slots that

          9  have been unused, if you add to them the OST

         10  classrooms that have to close, it puts those sites,

         11  we believe, in a situation where they can't

         12  responsibly be funded the way we have funded them up

         13  to now.  We need to use those slots in places that

         14  will fill them up, where the highest needs are, and

         15  where the highest needs for the age of children are.

         16    And that's why we're doing this, and this is not

         17  going to be a one- time event around the City in the

         18  coming couple of years. So it will continue to be an

         19  issue.  But Ajay will speak to the specifics.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Hi Ajay.

         21                 MR. CHAUDRI: Hi.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You're not

         23  closing my two day care centers are you Ajay?

         24                 MR. CHAUDRI: Discuss that with the

         25  Commissioner. But I do want to sort of address  --
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          2  there are two different issues.  They're related,

          3  because following from the strategic plan, what we

          4  have said is  --  I do want to make clear that we

          5  are making no net reduction in New York City in pre-

          6  school care.  That every slot that is reallocated is

          7  then reallocated to an area of either higher need or

          8  towards younger children.  So even in the one case,

          9  the Miracle Makers, we've added slots at six of the

         10  sites, while reducing the slots at three.  The

         11  Miracle Maker situation is different.  They were a

         12  program under review.  And we met with the elected

         13  officials from that area during the time of the

         14  review. And David T. Bradley is one of three sites

         15  there that is affected. David T. Bradley was the

         16  one, that in conversation with the Miracle Makers

         17  was identified to them, in March to  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And that was

         19  the meeting that I sent the staff person and you

         20  closed it. Okay?  And all the other elected

         21  officials were present, okay?  I'm watching  --

         22                 MR. CHAUDRI: Okay, I should say that

         23  at that meeting, we did suggest  --  Commissioner

         24  Mattingly said we couldn't start in your district,

         25  but we probably can, if you'd like.  It was just
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          2  that  --  not to contradict the Commissioner  -- but

          3  at that meeting, several  elected officials who were

          4  there, asked for specific analysis for what we were

          5  showing, which in part, was that there was a high

          6  degree of service in the Bed/Sty area for pre-

          7  school aged children, and under service for

          8  infants/toddlers.  And that that was a direction

          9  that both the City needs to go towards, as well as

         10  Bed/Sty and Miracle Workers extends beyond that.  So

         11  that invitation is still open to have a Brooklyn

         12  specific presentation of the strategic plan and be

         13  able to  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Council Member

         15  Al Vann briefed me on the meeting.  As you know, I

         16  used to work for him, so he told me he was  --  he

         17  told me about David T. Bradley.  Again, as you know,

         18  the Speaker Quinn has an initiative that would

         19  convert all half- day pre- kindergartens to

         20  basically a full- day program.  And again, to keep

         21  the doors open for David Bradley as well as Irving

         22  Place, I hope that we can work together to  --  both

         23  major spaces, and they have three, four floors.  I

         24  know regulations differ from one program to the

         25  next.  What I would like to see under one roof is
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          2  Head Start, pre- K, and OST.  And the need in my

          3  district is there.  We just have to work together to

          4  coordinate outreach in the community.  The parents

          5  are calling me now, please don't close David T.

          6  Bradley.  I recognize we're not going to lose any

          7  slots, but my parents will not travel seven blocks

          8  away to a day care center that they do not know, to

          9  individuals that they do not know, in surroundings

         10  that they're not  --  that they do not know.  They

         11  want to stay in their community.  I want them to

         12  stay in Clinton Hills, Bedford- Stuyvesant, and I

         13  want to keep David T. Bradley open, as well as

         14  Irving Place.  And so I would hope that you would

         15  work with me and with the Chair, and with the

         16  Speaker Quinn to make that a reality.  Yes?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We'll work

         18  with you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         20                 Head Start.  In the Executive Budget,

         21  is there any additional funds for Head Start?  I

         22  recognize that the Federal government has turned its

         23  back on poor people, and that poor people are no

         24  longer on their priority, and a priority of theirs.

         25  And I haven't heard much with regards to Head Start,
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          2  and additional support for Head Start by the City of

          3  New York.  Is there any funds in the Executive

          4  Budget to increase Head Start?

          5                 MR. CHAUDRI: At this point  --  as

          6  you know, Head Start  --  everything that you said

          7  about the current Federal approach to Head Start

          8  would be something that I personally would support.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I like you

         10  Ajay.

         11                 MR. CHAUDRI: And it's you know, and

         12  it's true that the Federal government has frozen

         13  Head Start funding, now going on to the fifth year.

         14  And actually, this year there was a decline. And we

         15  have tried to keep pace and support our programs

         16  through what has been sort of flat line funding.

         17  And there  --  we have several initiatives to try to

         18  do so, which is both to make sure that we do

         19  efficient cost allocation for the type of model that

         20  you said, when there is UPK in the same building

         21  with Head Start, to see if we can find efficiencies

         22  in the insurance program, which is one of the big

         23  areas that raises costs in Head Start, and several

         24  other areas.  At this point, we don't have

         25  additional money  -- because Head Start has always
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          2  been a fully- funded Federal program --  the City

          3  makes its contribution in various forms  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

          5                 MR. CHAUDRI: -- Through in kind.  And

          6  by its nature, when we're keeping this program

          7  alive, we have been increasing our in kind support

          8  to this program, including the number of people who

          9  work at ACS who support Head Start, but don't get

         10  paid by Head Start.

         11                 But there's no money in the Executive

         12  Budget.  Nor has there ever been.  But it is an

         13  initiative that we have at times raised.  But we are

         14  supporting Head Start to the full extent possible,

         15  and the programs.  But Head Start is under  --  is

         16  financially under severe duress.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.  I know.

         18  And perhaps it's something that the City Council

         19  could look at.

         20                 And my very last question, which

         21  really goes back to grandmothers who are raising

         22  mothers again.  You know, the number of AIDS orphans

         23  is going to be increasing in the number of coming

         24  years, particularly in communities of color.  Is

         25  there any initiative in the Executive Budget to
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          2  address these children, who unfortunately, are

          3  losing their parents as a result of this pandemic?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We stand

          5  ready, and have stood ready for some years now, to

          6  help any family pull together and see to it that no

          7  child is an orphan.  Those resources are still

          8  there.  They have been there for a number of years.

          9  And we are at the point now where children are being

         10  regularly adopted at unheard of numbers going back

         11  15 years, and that there are far fewer children

         12  waiting for adoption.  So we are confident that we

         13  can handle, as long as we continue to get the

         14  support of our City's families, we can handle

         15  children who come into our care because of the AIDS

         16  crisis, or another crisis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you

         18  Commissioner.  And again, congratulations, and look

         19  forward to speaking to you in the future.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Council Member

         21  Annabel Palma.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 Commissioner, and I believe Chairman

         25  deBlasio raised the issue on ChildStat.  I just want
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          2  to know a little bit more on how will the data be

          3  entered and reviewed?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, we will

          5  have available, by community district, and by zone,

          6  information that we can drill down, right to the

          7  management level, the unit level, even the worker

          8  level, on a whole range of statistics that we will

          9  be growing throughout the course of the year.  But

         10  such things as the overall caseload for the manager,

         11  let's say.  And the dispersion rate.  So if you have

         12  an average caseload of 20, but one worker has one

         13  case and another worker has forty, that's not really

         14  the dispersion rate that you need.  So we'll look

         15  very carefully at that, and try to help our managers

         16  and hold them accountable for learning how to both

         17  track that and manage that.

         18                 Another good example  --  there's a

         19  whole range of possibilities I could give you  --

         20  another good example is cases that we found abuse

         21  and neglect had occurred.  And yet we closed the

         22  case.  We want to look in depth at those cases, but

         23  we also want to look at the rate at which that's

         24  happening.  Because you will find, I think, at some

         25  levels, some managers and some units close cases
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          2  without preventive picking them up too often.  That

          3  way, we'll be teaching them how to look for that,

          4  and also, holding them accountable to get the

          5  preventive referrals up.  That also links to the

          6  other initiative we're doing, where we're having 250

          7  more Family Services workers to make that preventive

          8  connection in those indicated cases.

          9                 But the whole range of that sort of

         10  statistics, we'll be able, sitting in a room, with

         11  the data in front of us, with maps in front of us,

         12  that show us where the cases are coming from, and

         13  where the children are place.  We'll be able to hold

         14  ourselves more accountable for the results.  For

         15  example, fewer children getting referred to us a

         16  second or a third time, after we've closed an

         17  investigation the first time.  The rate at which

         18  that happens is very important to keep track of, and

         19  see what the differences are.  You won't be perfect.

         20    No worker will be perfect. But if you have a rate

         21  of kids coming back into care, or coming back as

         22  being indicated abused or neglected again, that's

         23  higher than your borough average or your CD average,

         24  then we need to look at that.  That's when we'll go

         25  into the cases more specifically, and figure out why
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          2  we did it the way we did it here, there, and

          3  elsewhere.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And in your

          5  testimony, there are going to be two cases discussed

          6  per session.  Is this in that ten- week  --

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Each session,

          8  yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Two cases.  How

         10  are those cases going to be identified?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We'll do some

         12  sampling.  It could be we want to focus on a

         13  particular kind of case, because of what we see in

         14  the numbers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.  And in

         16  regards to the staff, made up by the deputy boroughs

         17  and the staff for ChildStat, is this experienced

         18  staff?  Or new staff that's going to be training to

         19  come into this Department?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: These will be

         21  managers.  Our second to highest level managers.

         22  Our borough directors will be there, and our deputy

         23  directors, each of whom has zones that they are

         24  responsible for.  Below that are managers and

         25  supervisors. We'll have the highest and the second
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          2  highest level in the borough field offices, who will

          3  be called to account for the results they are

          4  achieving by staff from throughout the organization.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

          6  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Council Member

          8  Gale Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         10  much.  It's a very impressive testimony,

         11  Commissioner.  You have very good staff, that helps.

         12

         13                 Just picking up on Council Member

         14  James, not to talk endlessly about OST.  But I think

         15  one of the problems is, and certainly in my

         16  district, is the Housing Authority, in the sense

         17  that some of these pockets that we all experience in

         18  gentrified areas and with the Housing Authority.  So

         19  when you cut slots from an after- care program, part

         20  of the settlement house, in Lincoln Square

         21  Neighborhood Center, you tell those 48 parents they

         22  can get vouchers.  The thing is, they can only get

         23  vouchers for the life of the child in the program.

         24  And then we're told, okay, you have a lot of OST

         25  slots Gale, you just have to go up to 89th Street.
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          2  Well these parents live on 64th Street.  There's

          3  something wrong with this picture.  Now I don't know

          4  if it's you.  I don't know if it's EYCD, but you

          5  need to solve it, because what you're saying is, to

          6  the young people in Council Member James's district

          7  and then to my district, who happen to live in the

          8  Housing Authority, which is a great institution in

          9  our City, is that they don't really count. And so

         10  you have to think of something else.  Because

         11  otherwise, that program closes at that settlement

         12  house, or the programs that Council Member James

         13  describes.  So fine for the vouchers this year, but

         14  that doesn't help the infrastructure of the program.

         15    I don't really understand why it's not being

         16  solved.  Do you have any comments Ajay?  It doesn't

         17  make sense.

         18                 MR. CHAUDRI: On the issue  --

         19  because I know Council Member, you have raised the

         20  issue about placement of OST on the Upper Westside.

         21  I can't comment on sort of the decisions on where

         22  OST was placed.  But on the comment about how

         23  programs could potentially use vouchers in the short

         24  term, and whether that would be a sustainable

         25  solution  --  we have said, as part of our strategic
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          2  plan, that we would like to see programs move

          3  towards what we call a contract voucher model, or a

          4  voucher program.  It's one of the reasons that we're

          5  integrating the HRA system of care into ACS, is so

          6  that while they would have an initial voucher, there

          7  would be these families that we want to have an open

          8  front door system of care to all families that would

          9  allow programs to sustain themselves, with a voucher

         10  level of funding.

         11                 So while we agree that it's a risk

         12  for programs to --  as opposed to the contracted

         13  models that sort of jump ahead and say, well, we're

         14  going to do a voucher- based system of care, we do

         15  believe that with the integration, over time, it is

         16  a sustainable model.

         17                 At that same point, on the issue

         18  about you know, not taking full advantage of low

         19  costs spaces, and serving pockets of people of  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Poverty.

         21                 MR. CHAUDRI: Poverty in affluent

         22  areas, and how you do that, if OST wasn't granted

         23  there, and my suggestion would be to work with us,

         24  and we will have workshops on how you might be able

         25  to sustain a voucher- based system.  And again, of
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          2  the 30 full school- age classroom closures last

          3  year, or 30 some odd, 11 of them did decide to use

          4  voucher programs.  Those will continue to need

          5  support and development.  We have to do more to help

          6  those.  But that's one of many options for what

          7  programs can do with the space.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So you're

          9  saying that the transfer of the $252 million, about

         10  48,000 slots, 202 full- time staff that are coming

         11  from HRA, that that could be part of this so called

         12  infrastructure?  I mean in the broadest sense.

         13                 MR. CHAUDRI: It could be  --  over

         14  the medium to long term.  So I mean, initially,

         15  programs who are taking OST vouchers would have the

         16  OST transition services.  But over time, we want to

         17  have  --  over the long term, the goal in this

         18  particular plan is to move towards a system where

         19  programs can take contracts and vouchers.  And that

         20  this  --  but the overall system, which would now be

         21  almost 100,000 kids, and be 50- or 60,000 of them

         22  would be voucher- based children, would now have as

         23  much access to the contractor, private pay system as

         24   --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well this is
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          2  my ignorance. Forty- eight parents get vouchers

          3  September 9, 2006.  But then what happens in

          4  September, 2007?  Is it possible to move  --  what

          5  you're saying is it's possible to move some of this

          6  HRA infrastructure.  But what happens if they're not

          7  on public assistance?

          8                 MR. CHAUDRI: Well there will always

          9  be a large pool of the subsidized population who

         10  receive vouchers.  It will be incumbent upon

         11  programs to take the responsibility for recruiting

         12  and bringing in families.  Which we have already

         13  done on the contracted side, by moving to program-

         14  based enrollment, to say, we want the front doors of

         15  child care service to be in the program.

         16                 On one level  --  and this might be

         17  idealistic  -- in the long run, it is the goal that

         18  families would be able to take in contract and

         19  voucher care, at their program level.  And the

         20  programs would be able to accommodate either.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  It

         22  obviously needs more discussion.  But I'm just

         23  saying, where there's Housing Authority in areas

         24  like ours, which I hate to tell you, are going to be

         25  increasing, given the way that the real estate is
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          2  going in this City, you need to work more with the

          3  Housing Authority.

          4                 And let me give you another example.

          5  The school I'm at this morning, speaking at a

          6  wonderful presentation  --  it's a new principal.

          7  He's got type A  Westside parents, we all know who

          8  they are.  And then he's got a whole bunch of

          9  Housing Authority young people.  And now he didn't

         10  know, because the buildings  -- yes, we do.  --

         11  Because he didn't know that they were from the

         12  Housing Authority.  Nobody has briefed him.  Now the

         13  Education Department is not your problem.  And the

         14  Housing Authority is not your problem.  But my guess

         15  is, within that context, there are children who may

         16  be ACS or may not.  But it needs to be a Citywide

         17  issue.  Because the development doesn't say the name

         18  of it, in these buildings, it's scattered.  But he's

         19  got about, you know, I think about 250 young people

         20  from the development out of 500.  He didn't even

         21  know that.  I've always complained that the Housing

         22  Authority and the Department of Education don't work

         23  together.

         24                 But my question then is, from this

         25  new initiative, that I know really came out of the

                                                            81

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  City Council and some of the tragedy  --  and I

          3  think there was a  --  the Mayor handled it very

          4  well, the young boy on the bus, and the horrible

          5  tragedy that resulted.  But that kid was out of

          6  school quite a bit.  So my question is, what is the

          7  answer to education neglect procedure? How is it

          8  proceeding?  And what are you doing to implement

          9  some of the discussions that we started earlier,

         10  along those lines?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  CHAHINE: We're still working very  --  Good

         13  afternoon.  Zeinab Chahine, Executive Deputy

         14  Commissioner.  We're working very closely on the

         15  inter- agency task force of the Department of

         16  Education on some of the initiatives, including

         17  strengthening our communication and collaboration.

         18  We have identified liaisons in both agencies that we

         19  are now currently have in place.  We have trained

         20  our supervisors on the use of the ATS system, the

         21  school system that we are able now to access, each

         22  of our supervisors are able to go in, get

         23  information on any child that we have that we can

         24  see whether you know, they're attending regularly.

         25  How are they doing in school.  And so we have that
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          2  going on.  We're planning some joint training

          3  together.  Coming up, we have held several forums,

          4  actually, in different regions so far, to exchange

          5  information.  We have issued clarifications in terms

          6  of contacting, making sure that our staff contact

          7  the source.  So there are several things that are

          8  going on, and we're working very closely together to

          9  implement all of the different things that we have

         10  outlined in the inter- agency task force.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I mean, I

         12  assume that the investigation is ongoing with the

         13  little eight year old and the bus.  But he was out

         14  40 days, and he had been suspended three times.  So

         15  hopefully, in the future, that kind of situation

         16  would be caught under your system?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CHAHINE: We are hoping that the new system is

         19  stronger, that we will be able  --  both the

         20  Department of Education  --  to identify situations

         21  much more quickly, to act on them, to make sure that

         22  the procedures are working.  And then once these

         23  referrals come to us, that we have a system that

         24  actually works.  And is able to communicate with the

         25  schools, to get the information timely, and for us
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          2  to be able to communicate with the people who make

          3  these referrals, and jointly work together to make

          4  sure that we're responding effectively.  So we're

          5  hoping all of this is going to strengthen  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What's the

          7  date on this? Maybe you told me.

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  CHAHINE: We have several  --  for the initiatives

         10   --  we have several dates.  We can make that

         11  available in terms of when each of these parts  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Because I

         13  think it was to be May '06.  Has that changed?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  CHAHINE: For which one are you  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well just in

         17  fact, if one of my kids was out of school 40 days,

         18  would he be caught now?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  CHAHINE: Yes, we hope that it would  --  with the

         21  current system that they have in place right now,

         22  that situation would be caught and  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So why can't

         24   --  a kid, if he's out 40 days  --  and one of my

         25  kids was out 40 days once upon a time, would he be
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          2  caught?  He would be caught today.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  CHAHINE: Yes.  I mean, the Department of Education

          5  has a system to flag any child who has been out for

          6  10 consecutive days, or 20 over four months period.

          7  So they do have that system in place, and now, they

          8  strengthen it by having even, you know, a check

          9  after five days, to make sure that the right

         10  procedures were applied, and that child is referred

         11  and followed up on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And how is  --

         13                 MR. CHAUDRI: If I could add to this,

         14  DOE's new policy went into effect in April.  And the

         15  one piece of evidence I can offer you is, we've been

         16  receiving a whole lot more reports from DOE.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: From DOE.

         18  Okay.

         19                 The other question I have is just

         20  regarding the CONNECTION system.  I know you're

         21  trying very hard to work with the State databases,

         22  and I know from past experience on the  -- working

         23  with Esther Fuchs, when she was trying to do

         24  something similar with Integrated Human Services,

         25  it's not so easy to do that.  So I was just
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          2  wondering, does the system crash?  How are you going

          3  to be able to repair the system if it needs  --  if

          4  it has challenges?  And I know you have allocated

          5  quite a bit of funding for this.  I just want to get

          6  a little bit more of an update.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'll start.

          8  We have been working very closely with the State.

          9  In terms of the problems that we face during the

         10  Winter, there has been marked improvement in the

         11  Build 18 system.  We are still at the point of

         12  requesting of the State an independent review.  What

         13  we mean by independent, we may be negotiating for a

         14  bit, but an independent review, before we move on,

         15  to build 19.  We still have some serious issues with

         16  the new case plan and its use in CONNECTIONS, but

         17  overall, the major problems are far less  --  are

         18  happening far fewer times during the course of a

         19  week.

         20                 Now the State has also agreed, and

         21  begun to work with us on developing a pipe to the

         22  door system, so that we can take responsibility for

         23  our network, or our piece of the network. And fix it

         24  ourselves  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That would be
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          2  much preferable.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's been

          4  agreed to by the State, and we're beginning the work

          5  on it now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And what do

          7  you think, for the field workers, how will this

          8  enhance their ability?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, first

         10  of all, we have to make the CONNECTIONS fields work

         11  for them, to help them do their job, rather than

         12  just being additional things you have to do.  So

         13  that you'd walk them through the process of a good

         14  investigation. We had something like that in the

         15  past.  We're going to have to revisit it, with the

         16  State, and are in the process of discussing that so

         17  that CONNECTIONS does its job right, we need an

         18  electronic system, no question about it.  But that

         19  it helps people rather than is another thing they

         20  have to do.

         21                 In addition to that, we are testing

         22  12 different laptops, tablets, and  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I would do a

         24  laptop, not tablets.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well we're
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          2  testing them all. We got 12 people who are going to

          3  use each for a period of two weeks, and then we'll

          4  take a look at what they feel about it.

          5                 In addition, we just got from the

          6  State, a commitment to provide us with some pens

          7  which, once you teach the pen to your handwriting,

          8   --  it would probably take me about 10 years  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm familiar

         10  with that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Then the pen

         12  could be plugged into CONNECTIONS, and actually

         13  deliver the report.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right, I know

         15  that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Because some

         17  workers want to work typing, and some workers want

         18  to work writing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: There's some

         20  DOE staff using that.  Some of the folks who were

         21  doing the coaching, as you probably know.  So it's

         22  worth looking at.

         23                 That's it.  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you

         25  Council Member.  Commissioner, just  -- I have
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          2  several more questions, and I know Chair Weprin

          3  does, and then we'll be done.  But let me follow up

          4  on some of the points raised by  --

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I've heard

          6  that before Mr. --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All hearings

          8  do come to an end eventually.  That we can guarantee

          9  you.  Okay, so on the point just raised right now on

         10  CONNECTIONS.  You know that we've been very, very

         11  concerned about this, and I think you just gave us a

         12  very forthright response to say, you want something

         13  where the State system is not in the way of being

         14  able to get the work done.  But I'm not so clear on

         15  your answer about where we stand.  Did I hear you

         16  say correctly, the State has granted you permission

         17  to effectively create your own approach?  Or what

         18  are you saying?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No.

         20  CONNECTIONS Statewide Information System is

         21  essential, and it has to be Statewide.  But, so they

         22  will continue to develop Build 19 for example.  We

         23  can't get into a system in which every county has

         24  its own, it would just not work.  But, this pipe to

         25  the door idea, will lead to our being able to  --
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          2  once we input the data into the CONNECTIONS system

          3   -- we can get it ourselves.  We can work with it

          4  our selves.  And when something breaks, involving

          5  let's say the size of the line into the field

          6  office, we don't have enough capacity there, we'll

          7  take care of it.  We don't have to wait for the

          8  State to do it, or put it on their longer list of

          9  things that have to be done.

         10                 Our people work 24/7.  And we have

         11  computer problems sometimes, with the State.  We

         12  have to wait for Monday before we can move forward.

         13  Now CONNECTIONS, they have worked hard to fix. And

         14  they work long hours so it's different now.  But

         15  we're not going to have our own system, but we will

         16  have control over it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All right.  So

         18  what I heard in between the lines is, improvements

         19  in CONNECTIONS, but far from where it needs to be.

         20  And that the State maintenance structure doesn't

         21  reflect modern reality, because it's not universal.

         22  It's not 24 hour et cetera.  So now  --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We can do it

         24  better, I'll just say that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I respect
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          2  that, but the point is, so now they're finally  --

          3  and this is what's so frustrating --  they're

          4  finally granting you permission to be able to take

          5  care of a system in the way everyone else in the

          6  world is taking care of a system, including all the

          7  corporate worlds and a lot of government.  So now

          8  that they've granted you permission, are you able to

          9  do it immediately?  Or is there yet another phase

         10  before you can actually maintain the system to the

         11  standards you're looking for?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We will be

         13  testing some field offices with  --  under our

         14  control this Summer, and we hope to have this thing

         15  all in our hands by the end of the year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: But you do

         17  agree  --  and I know this is not a problem of your

         18  own making  --  but you do agree this is dicey

         19  situation when you have the information source

         20  unreliable, and that can have real ramifications for

         21  how you approach a case.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Critical.

         23  Absolutely critical.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Yes.  So I'll

         25  leave it at that, because it's not your problem.
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          2  But it is a problem, and I think the State has

          3  really not been accountable for this.

          4                 On the protocol issue, with the

          5  Department of Education, I think we need some

          6  clarification.  I appreciate that the policy, the

          7  day- to- day approached changed in April.  But I'm

          8  unclear whether the overall protocol  --  and we had

          9  a lengthy discussion of this at one of our hearings

         10   --  whether the sort of overall governing protocol

         11  is fully in place, or whether what you were saying

         12  is, in April, there was sort of step along the way,

         13  and now we're still continuing towards a broader

         14  protocol.  Deputy Commissioner, I guess that goes to

         15  you.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  CHAHINE: I think the general protocol is in place.

         18  The protocol effective April is how you trigger an

         19  assessment of a child who is absent, is in place.

         20  Some of the other things I was referring to, that we

         21  have outlined a numerous other initiatives to

         22  strengthen our relationship with the Department of

         23  Education, our work together, and those are being

         24  implemented.  And we have an implementation you know

         25  schedule for all of these different pieces.  Like
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          2  for example, the joint training I was speaking of.

          3  And some of the other things are unfolding in the

          4  next several months.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So the entire

          6  menu of items that you are changing in your

          7  relationship, if you will, all of that has now been

          8  laid out and agreed to?  And now we're implementing.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  CHAHINE: We actually have an implementation plan

         11  with specific dates.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So just again,

         13  speaking to us as people who are not the experts in

         14  this area, just clarify how long is it  --  what is

         15  the maximum a child can be out of school before ACS

         16  finds out about it?  Unexcused absence.  Just to

         17  clarify.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CHAHINE: Unexcused absence.  The way that we agreed

         20  on the protocol, is that not to have a specific time

         21  that the Department of Education will wait. If, on

         22  the second or third day, for example, they learn

         23  that a child is in need of an intervention on our

         24  behalf, that they would be able to call a report.

         25                 However, the number of days now is 10
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          2  consecutive days where the Department of Education

          3  starts to  -- consecutively, if the child is absent

          4   --  they start rigorous, you know, look into the

          5  situation to find out you know, including you know,

          6  several steps that they take in terms of contacting

          7  the parents, some home visits in order to find out

          8  what the reason is for the child being absent.  So

          9  you have 10 days for that to be completed, and then

         10  after that 10 days, they do have another step to

         11  make sure that during those days, all of these

         12  actions took place to find out what is going on with

         13  that particular child.

         14                 And then, the 20 days over  --  if

         15  the child comes back in, let's say they were out two

         16  days, and then they come back, and then they're out

         17  another two days.  And so, over a period of four

         18  months, if they're out for 20 days, for example,

         19  that process --  they call it I think a 47 gets

         20  triggered and they do go through all of their steps

         21  in order to make sure they find out what the reason

         22  is.  And to contact us at any point in time, they

         23  would trigger a report if they believe this child is

         24  absent because of you know unreasonable or unexcused

         25  and that the parent is not getting the child to
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          2  school.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I'll simply

          4  say this.  When we had the previous hearing, I

          5  certainly appreciate how complex this is, and I

          6  appreciate why you would say it's not just about a

          7  simple day limit.  On the other hand, I want to

          8  caution, this is one of the biggest bureaucracies on

          9  earth.  And the other 1.1 million kids in our school

         10  system, and yours is a sizeable agency as well.  And

         11  I always get a little worried when there's too much

         12  nuance.  And there's too many chances for someone

         13  maybe not to have a you know, a universal

         14  accountability standard that would force their hand.

         15    So I appreciate what you're saying.  I just would

         16  ask it this way.  Is there going to be some kind of

         17  constant sort of assessment to see if this is

         18  working?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  CHAHINE: Yes.  And I think what's different here is

         21  because the Department of Education has put in place

         22  a monitoring system that they actually would be able

         23  to tell if these actions haven't been taking place,

         24  and that the reports are happening.  And we're

         25  meeting regularly with the Department of Education,
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          2  evaluating what we are implementing, to make sure

          3  that there's a need for adjustment, that we will do

          4  so.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All right.

          6  And who  --  are you the senior ACS person in charge

          7  of that?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  CHAHINE: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And is it

         11  Michelle Cahill on the education side?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  CHAHINE: Michelle Cahill, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Similar

         15  question. Protocol with the Police Department.

         16  Again, we had a hearing that Commissioner Kelly

         17  attended.  Obviously, tremendous concern to clarify

         18  who does what in these situations.  Is there now a

         19  formal protocol in place?  If so, obviously, we'd

         20  like a copy.  And where are we in implementation of

         21  that?

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  CHAHINE: We are currently revising the protocol.

         24  And we're making progress in making sure that now,

         25  we are actually going to have a central unit within
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          2  NYPD that will actually respond Citywide, when we

          3  are contacted for an instant response.  They're

          4  putting that in place. It's happening.  In the first

          5  couple of weeks in June, that they will have that

          6  unit set up.  They're working very hard to make sure

          7  that we have a system that actually has

          8  accountability.  That will know every time that we

          9  contact the NYPD to have a joint response. That

         10  happens effectively and efficiently through that

         11  central unit. They're assigning a lieutenant to ACS

         12  that will start on June 5th, that would be our

         13  liaison outside, at ACS.  So we're making quite a

         14  number of steps to make sure that the system that we

         15  have in place will be strengthened and that we will

         16  be able to do those joint investigations.  We're

         17  working very closely to get feedback from the child

         18  advocacy centers, for example.  Where we could make

         19  sure that we're utilizing them more effectively.  So

         20  again, we have quite a number of things going on

         21  there.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I'm just going

         23  to ask a bunch of very quick questions.  You can

         24  give very quick answers, because I know we're

         25  running late here.   Yes, lightning rod, exactly.
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          2                 Is it going to be clear in this

          3  protocol that there is a benefit of the doubt, if

          4  you will, in favor of the police investigating?

          5  It's clearly, again, in the Nixzmary case, there was

          6    --  it think it's charitable to say, there were

          7  some you know, misunderstanding or lack of

          8  communication between all the player, that might

          9  have led to less investigation than could have taken

         10  place.  I don't think anyone did anything out of ill

         11  will, but that's how it ended up happening.  So in

         12  the new protocol, will it be clearer what triggers

         13  investigation?  And will it put a clear sort of

         14  accountability standard on who is supposed to call

         15  for that, and how it's supposed to play out?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  CHAHINE:  Yes.  It would be much clearer.  And in

         18  this new structure, if we call NYPD and say we have

         19  a case that fits the criteria, they will actually

         20  respond.  And we will do a joint investigation.  So

         21  it's  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: That's

         23  automatic investigation.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CHAHINE: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  That's

          3  very helpful.

          4                 All right.  Let me do a few more of

          5  this general vein.  Commissioner, I heard very

          6  clearly, and I'm going to leave it at that, your

          7  response to Council Member James's question on the

          8  death of Amber Sabeek, and I appreciate the

          9  sensitivities of the case.  We, obviously, would

         10  like to  --  when you have completed your

         11  investigation  --  get a sense of what happened, and

         12  the ramifications of the preventative services piece

         13  of this.  I think you know, this is   --  I would

         14  like to believe  --

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'd be happy

         16  to do that, especially the preventive services

         17  aspect of this, since they were in charge of the

         18  situation.  This case itself, though, I don't think

         19  really falls under the law for my telling you all

         20  about investigation, what problems, all that stuff

         21  is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Whatever you

         23  find to be the appropriate level of information, I'm

         24  trying to signal that.  But I am saying what  --

         25  the preventative services piece of this, successful
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          2  or not, is something we'd like to understand within

          3  those limits.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Me too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Good.  And

          6  secondly, and this may or may not be a comparable

          7  situation, but again, we had a recent case, a 23-

          8  month old boy in the Bronx, Timothy Nichols, who was

          9  hospitalized after nearly drowning in the bathtub of

         10  his home. Apparently, a family that had a history

         11  with ACS.  I feel it's always our role as an

         12  oversight entity to say, you know, is there anything

         13  you can tell us?  And if not, we need you to give us

         14  any insight you can when the time is appropriate.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There's much

         16  I don't know, or I know, but I'm not certain of,

         17  that I don't want to give out information that turns

         18  out to be incorrect.  And I also want to make sure

         19  we looked at all the angles to this story, or to

         20  this situation.  There was a foster care agency

         21  involved in this case. So I'm calling them in to

         22  talk with them about this as well.  And they were

         23  tracking the particular situation with the family.

         24  So until I speak with them, and hear why we did what

         25  we did, and why we didn't do what we didn't do, I

                                                            100

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  don't want to speak too specifically.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: We look

          4  forward to your report on that when you are able.

          5                 In the vein of prevention, I'm just

          6  going to ask point blank here, it's obvious from

          7  your testimony, that you are taking personal

          8  responsibility for making sure the $9 million for

          9  prevention services is developed or located in the

         10  course of the fiscal year, from your existing

         11  resources, and that you will apply it to

         12  preventative services.  You're saying that, and

         13  that's very much appreciated.  And I believe you.  I

         14  wish it were baselined. I wish it were even clearer.

         15    But I think a middle ground might be --  and I

         16  want to put this to you in a straight forward manner

         17    -- to have this as a term and condition in the

         18  budget, so that it's crystal clear there's a

         19  commitment here.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm not

         21  familiar with how that works here in New York City.

         22  But I'm open to seeing what it is, and reacting to

         23  it at the time I see it.  There's complexity here,

         24  in the sense that the preventive budget is the

         25  preventive budget.  This money is going to come out

                                                            101

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  of there precisely where from, I'm not able to say,

          3  because I don't know right now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  We'll

          5  follow up with you on that.

          6                 On the budget front, real simple.

          7  Just give me the simplest answer you can.  Is there

          8  any significant impact on the agency of the State's

          9  final budget, in terms of flexible fund for Family

         10  Services?  And the way that block granting was done.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We don't

         12  think so, this year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All right.

         14  That's a good answer.

         15                 On Federal front, there's been a

         16  concern raised about some money apparently the City

         17  expects to lose, that we had previously gotten from

         18  the Federal government title, I think it's called,

         19   "Title Four E".  I believe $66 million is the

         20  amount that we may no longer be receiving.  Could

         21  you give us just a simple answer on why?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: No.  Probably

         23  not.  Title Four E is the Federal funding system for

         24  foster care.  They I think quite wrongly  -- the

         25  Feds have set up a system where they will reimburse

                                                            102

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  the States for poorer children, for poor children

          3  who come into foster care.  And our view, of course,

          4  all children who come into foster care deserve the

          5  same level of support.  They have not changed their

          6  eligibility standard since the TANF changes back in

          7  1996.  So fewer and fewer of the children in this

          8  City who come into foster care, are eligible for

          9  Title Four E funding.

         10                 In addition to that, going back many

         11  years, we haven't had a full Federal audit really

         12  for 20 years.  We have been billing the Federal

         13  government in ways that we have taken a look at, by

         14  doing a complete review of all the cases we've been

         15  billing them for.  And we need this adjustment we

         16  think, at this time, to get us to the point where we

         17  can be confident we will pass any Federal audit.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So you don't

         19  sound like you regard this as a lost, in the classic

         20  sense.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We'll figure

         22  out how to work through it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Okay.  A

         24  quick related  -- not related, but a quick point

         25  about funding.  We understand in the Executive
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          2  Budget, there's a significant increase in funding

          3  for institutional schools, including out- of- state

          4  institutions, that ACS pays for placements of

          5  children in. I guess kids from special education

          6  placements.  And I guess the concern is not that

          7  there's an increase in spending, but what is the

          8  oversight of either not institutions in our state

          9  that we have control of the conditions that we're

         10  paying for.  Do they meet standards that we set?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There's

         12  actually two sets of children who are out of state.

         13  ACS used to place children in special facilities,

         14  mostly along the East Coast.  In Fiscal Year '02, we

         15  had 239.  We've been working for some years now to

         16  bring that number down, because I believe we should

         17  generally be able  to place any child with special

         18  needs somewhere in New York State. Really, somewhere

         19  in the New York City area.  We're down now to, from

         20  239 to 29, and we're going to keep working at that.

         21  There are some very specialized programs that only a

         22  few children will need, that maybe you can't have

         23  that facility everywhere.  Especially with some sex

         24  offenders.  And you know we have older children in

         25  care, so we also have to be careful not to ever say
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          2  never.

          3                 The other set of children are

          4  children whom we pay for, under the State law, that

          5  are placed out of state by DOE.  And I think you

          6  should speak with them further about their history,

          7  and where  --  and what they're headed toward.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: We will

          9  certainly do that. But on the first group, again, do

         10  you have  --  I appreciate your trying to reduce the

         11  number, but do you have some ability to provide

         12  oversight if we're spending money on institution out

         13  of state?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Less than we

         15  would like to, but yes.  We still have case

         16  management responsibility.  We still make sure that

         17  these agencies are licensed and fully certified. But

         18  we're moving away from using them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Two

         20  final questions from me, and then Chair Weprin I

         21  know has questions.  The one on child welfare, one

         22  on child care.

         23                 On child welfare, since you've had

         24  this surge of new reporting of cases, which again,

         25  we want to encourage, have you had enough of a body
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          2  of evidence to be able to draw any conclusions as to

          3  whether the incidence of child abuse is increasing,

          4  decreasing, stable.  You know, has this large amount

          5  of new reporting led you to any new conclusions

          6  about what's happening in our communities?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Not as yet.

          8  I think that it's clear though, that there was some

          9  under- reporting.  But that doesn't necessarily mean

         10  there's been an increase in child abuse or neglect.

         11  It just means people haven't been calling.  In all

         12  of social service, it's hard to make judgements

         13  about real facts, based just on how often an agent

         14  makes a decision.  Because they can make their

         15  decisions on different bases.  So for example, now

         16  that the schools are aware, more aware, we should

         17  get more reports from them.  Does that mean more

         18  children are not being cared for? Not necessarily.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.

         20  Finally, on child care --  and I'll just note, I

         21  appreciate very much some of the successes you've

         22  had recently, including simplifying the application

         23  process, and some of the work you've done in the

         24  Bronx. You know, we all understand OST was not your

         25  personal creation, so I don't want to harp on it.  I
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          2  do want to say, to this moment, I still don't think

          3  we've gotten a clear answer from any element of the

          4  Administration on the number of kids who did not

          5  make that transition smoothly.  So again, I

          6  appreciate the outreach efforts and the theory of

          7  the transition, but I still think there's a you

          8  know, quantitative outcome.  A certain number of

          9  kids who did not travel that path, and end up

         10  continuing in that kind of service. And also, the

         11  impact on the nonprofits in the community.  I think

         12  a lot of us have tried to drum home the point that

         13  these nonprofits have multiple positive impacts in

         14  the community, and if they are undermined

         15  financially or otherwise, a lot of other things fall

         16  by the wayside potentially.  And I think we all feel

         17  a little bit like voices in the wilderness, because

         18  we've never heard any kind of quantification back of

         19  what the Administration thinks.  Even if the

         20  Administration believes in a policy, sort of

         21  recognition, here are the problems that we're facing

         22  that we want to try and resolve.

         23                 So I'm saying that if you can say

         24  anything to either one of those, number of kids not

         25  making that transition, or number of nonprofits that
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          2  are experiencing real financial duress as a result

          3  of this new policy, at least we can all work from

          4  there.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: On the first

          6  issue, about any numbers that we have about families

          7  who have already been through this transition.  Of

          8  approximately a little bit more than 2,000 children

          9  who have  --  in one of the two prior stages  --

         10  left ACS school age child care, DYDC reports that

         11  approximately 1,400 children joined OST.  And we

         12  know that approximately  --  a little bit less than

         13  200 children have been using ACS vouchers in the

         14  transition.  So that gives us some sense of where

         15  the majority have gone.  But I do believe that as we

         16  move forward, and since this is a much bigger group

         17  this year, we should do a better job of tracking

         18  where the children  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Of that first

         20  universe, how many did not either end up with a

         21  voucher, or continue directly into OST programs?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Remember, I

         23  am mixing statistics that come from DYCD and

         24  statistics that come from us. But roughly, it would

         25  probably  --  it would seem like it would be about a
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          2  quarter.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: About  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: A quarter of

          5  the total.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: A quarter,

          7  okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DE BLASIO: So we have

          9  some rough estimates of where 75 percent of them

         10  have gone.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And on the

         12  question on the nonprofits and their centers in the

         13  community?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: On the

         15  question on the nonprofits, I mean, obviously,

         16  that's a very, very big concern for us, because

         17  these nonprofits are our City's service providers

         18  for child care services, and will continue to be for

         19  our pre- school based services.  We are working with

         20  them.  We need to do much more, and we will do much

         21  more with them.  But I mean, our view, as we said in

         22  the plan, is that the nonprofit service providers

         23  are the best judge of what services need to be

         24  provided in their community.  There are three or

         25  four different options they can pursue with our
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          2  help, and with other members of the City's help. And

          3  those are to add UPK slots to any sort of freed- up

          4  space; to add special needs educational slots; to

          5  follow our initiative to move towards aging down

          6  more of the services towards infants and toddlers;

          7  and/or to converts some of the classrooms into

          8  vouchers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So hearing all

         10  that, how many centers  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: How many

         12  centers are affected?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: How many do

         14  you think may need one or the other of those

         15  adjustments to guarantee their long term survival

         16  and ability to serve those communities?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh, I would

         18  say  --  I mean, frankly, a majority of the programs

         19  that are in this situation, where they're losing

         20  school age classrooms, will have to make some --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Give me a

         22  number, just so we're all on the same page.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Just one

         24  second.  It's 304 classrooms in 150 of our nonprofit

         25  programs.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: One five zero?

          3

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: One five

          5  zero.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So 150

          7  nonprofit sites that could be negatively affected

          8  financially, and that you're trying to find ways to

          9  reinforce with other types of programs?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: But you can't

         12  guarantee that's going to happen, so therefore, as a

         13  public policy matter, there are 150 nonprofit sites

         14  in our communities in this City that may or may not

         15  survive OST.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I wouldn't

         17  say that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I'm sure you

         19  wouldn't.  But --  you need to get your microphone

         20  on.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Which is

         22  we're saying that 150 sites where together where the

         23  programs have to make some choices about how to

         24  proceed.  Within one way, there's opportunity of

         25  space that's available, which hasn't been the case
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          2  in New York for a long time, in terms of child care

          3  possibilities.  And, one of the things the City has

          4  done is, the programs that are in City funded

          5  leases, in some ways, which are the most vulnerable,

          6  the City has said that it would cover the lease

          7  costs in the transition.  For the full space, as

          8  programs are making this adjustment, to the degree

          9  that the lease is continuing.  So there is some

         10  underlying stability there.

         11                 We have to actively work together

         12  with the programs to come up with the best options.

         13  But the programs, many of the programs, are

         14  responding to the call.  I mean, we have surveyed

         15  all of the programs, and I can just quickly tell you

         16  that we've determined that  --  really quick  --  57

         17  percent of the space, from their surveys, can be

         18  converted to serve infants and toddlers; only 10

         19  percent of those could do so without at least some

         20  capital construction costs.  We have money in our

         21  capital construction, and that's an aggressive thing

         22  that we want to try to do.  And 83 percent of the

         23  programs said that they want to serve younger

         24  children;  An additional 76 percent  --  and these

         25  are not mutually exclusive categories  --  76
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          2  percent said they would like to accept vouchers and

          3  continue to occupy that space with vouchers; and 40

          4  percent said they would like to apply and receive

          5  additional UPK slots.  Which we know this year will

          6  be one of the possibilities.

          7                 We have to work with the programs to

          8  see  --  to identify clearly which of these paths

          9  they want to travel, and how we can best develop

         10  that.  We have to build our capacity very quickly to

         11  serve, as you said, the 150 programs that are going

         12  through this.  But we want to do as much of that by

         13  September.  But one of the reasons that we built in

         14  the assurances around the lease costs is that they

         15  wouldn't crumble, you know, on September 9th.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I appreciate

         17  that very much. And we would like to be kept

         18  apprised of what the success level is, in keeping

         19  those programs viable to serve the communities.

         20                 Thank you very much Commissioner and

         21  your team.  And thank you Chair Weprin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Commissioner,

         23  just a quick follow up on some of the stats, and

         24  correct me if I got them wrong. I believe you

         25  testified earlier that right now, and you're looking
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          2  to reduce it, the caseload of case workers is about

          3  25 per case worker.  Is that correct?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Many workers

          5  have that number.  Let me give you the complete

          6  statistics.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, just  --

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm just

          9  using that as an example.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Fine, using that

         11  as an example, can you give me a figure, a ballpark

         12  figure, about how many active cases, outstanding

         13  totally, at any given time?  You know, the cases

         14  that are still considered open at any given time.

         15  What's the largest number that it could be?  Or

         16  might be?  Currently. Presently.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  CHAHINE: We're required to complete an investigation

         19  within 60 days.  And in the past, we were able to do

         20  that timely, 99 percent of the time we were able to

         21  do that.  In the previous several months, we have

         22  had a backlog basically of completing those  --  or

         23  determining those investigations on time.  In some

         24  boroughs, like the Bronx and Queens, we have a

         25  backlog right now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: When you say

          3  you're required. Under whose rules?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  CHAHINE: This is the State requirement.  We have 60

          6  days to complete an investigation and to make a

          7  determination.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  The State

          9  law.  Under State law?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CHAHINE: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  So what is

         13  the largest number of cases you've had outstanding?

         14  At any given time?

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  CHAHINE: In the Bronx, for example, we had as many

         17  as  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No.  Citywide.

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  CHAHINE: Citywide, about 4,000 backlogged

         21  determinations.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Okay, and

         23   --

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: To be clear,

         25  these investigations have been gotten underway, but
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          2  have not been closed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: They haven't been

          4  closed.  I understand.  They're still considered

          5  outstanding.

          6                 And just another quick follow up.

          7  How many case workers  --  you talked about you

          8  know, attrition and leaving, how many case workers,

          9  on the average, leave per month?  I know that's

         10  going to change, I'm just talking about right now.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Right now.

         12  Yes, this year, since January 22.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: How many?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  CHAHINE: About 25 on average.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: About 25 a month

         17  per average. Okay.  And just finally, my last

         18  question is, that tomorrow is June 1st.  At the

         19  Preliminary Budget hearing in March, you testified

         20  that approximately $3.5- to $5 million would be

         21  needed to bring the out- of- school time transition,

         22  and provide care for children in school age programs

         23  over the Summer.  And that ACS expected these

         24  dollars to be included in the Executive Budget.

         25  Obviously, Summer is upon us.  Have the funds been
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          2  identified?  And if so, where are they in the Fiscal

          3   '07 Executive Budget?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  CHAHINE: They are not in the budget.  We are working

          6  with OMB to see what our need is, and to adjust it

          7  in the November plan.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  And how

          9  many children do you anticipate providing care for

         10  this Summer?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: At this

         12  point, it appears that it will be between 5,100 and

         13  5,400.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, fine.  And

         15  for the last word, Chair deBlasio.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you.

         17  This is a special last question.  I should have

         18  asked this when I was asking about what you've seen

         19  as a result of the new reporting.  The obvious other

         20  question to ask is what's the current number of open

         21  cases, on the child welfare side?  And can you

         22  compare it to what our situation was a year ago?  Or

         23  before the recent crisis?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I have the

         25  number of reports, but I don't have the open cases.

                                                            117

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Is that not

          3   --  I hate to be critical, but isn't that the

          4  standard measurement?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  CHAHINE: Let me try to answer your question.  At any

          7  point in time, we're receiving approximately 300

          8  reports of child abuse and neglect every day now.

          9  Over 300.  So at any point, it's a moving number.

         10  At any point in time we have investigations coming

         11  in, and others are being completed.  So the last

         12  number that I've looked, in terms of volume of open

         13  cases that we have under investigation,

         14  approximately  -- and who are being provided with

         15  services in the child protective offices  --  we

         16  probably have as many as 14,000 or 15,000 cases

         17  open.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: That's 14,000

         19  or 15,000.

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  CHAHINE: Open.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And how does

         23  that compare  -- again, give me whatever standard

         24  you can.  Six months ago, a year ago, or whatever.

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  CHAHINE: Well a year ago, the number would have

          3  probably been around 10,000 or 8,000.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So it's 14,000

          5  to 15,000 roughly, and it would have been 8,000 to

          6  10,000 a year ago.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  CHAHINE: Yes.  Again, based on my memory of  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  CHAHINE:  And the last time I looked, too.  The

         12  volume has increase, and that's why our caseloads

         13  now are much larger than they were a year ago.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So you could

         15  have  --  again, we're just being broad here, and

         16  we're estimating  --  but you could have as many as

         17  50 percent increase in open cases since a year ago.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  CHAHINE: About 40 percent  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And on that

         21  rate of reporting you just mentioned, so you're

         22  saying reports are coming in roughly 300 a day.  How

         23  does that compare say, to a year ago?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  CHAHINE: Maybe 150, 160.  Some months usually.
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          2  That's on average.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We're up 40

          4  percent.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Forty percent?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: In the last

          7  six months.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So about 40

          9  percent increase in reporting, and about 40 percent

         10  increase in open caseload.

         11                 And just one obvious additional

         12  follow up.  Do you have any average on how long  --

         13  and again, I understand you're bringing the new

         14  folks in, you have a lot more work on your plate,

         15  how long is the average case open at this point?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  CHAHINE: So in some cases, we're able to complete

         18   --  and as the Commissioner stated, we're doing the

         19  safety assessment most of the time quickly, and

         20  within the seven day timeframe.  So we're getting

         21  out there.  We're going the preliminary assessment

         22  and investigation to ensure that the children are

         23  safe, and now, it depends on the continuation of

         24  investigation and if we find that the family needs

         25  services, that case will remain open.  It goes to
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          2  preventive, it goes to foster care.  So those cases

          3  get handled differently.  So if you say on an

          4  average investigation, how long is it taking us to

          5   --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Let's say

          7  that.  Just the investigation phase.

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  CHAHINE: The investigation phase, whereas we used to

         10  do it within 60 days, you know, 99 percent of the

         11  time, we might be like at 80 percent of you know,

         12  completion on time right now.  Or even 70 percent,

         13  70 to 80 percent.  So we are a little bit behind

         14  because of the volume and trying to make sure that

         15  we --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Do you have

         17   --  and this is certainly going to be pertinent to

         18  the use of the ChildStat system --  do you have an

         19  outer limit past which you will not let an

         20  investigation go?  Meaning, do you have a maximum

         21  amount of time you will allow an investigation to

         22  go?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  CHAHINE:  We monitor every investigation we have

         25  reports that basically  --  so that's how many
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          2  investigations are overdue, by how many days.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: But again, do

          4  you have a maximum?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  CHAHINE: Oh, we don't want  --  you know, our goal

          7  is to make the investigation within 60 days, so we

          8  manage to do that.  So if I find one that is 100

          9  days, or 150 days, it's raises an alarm, and we

         10  start to look into that particular area and see why

         11  it's still open.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you.

         13  Chair Weprin, thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm just a little

         15  confused on the statistics.  I thought I asked how

         16  many were the most active cases at any given time,

         17  and I thought the answer was 4,000.  But then, in

         18  response to Chair deBlasio, it sounded like 14,000

         19  to 15,000.

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  CHAHINE: The total open investigations would be

         22  14,000.  I was answering the question earlier about

         23  the what the backlog might be.  At any point in

         24  time, making a determination within 60 days.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So then actually,
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          2  the answer to my question about how many active

          3  cases, open cases, there could be at any given time,

          4  it's really 14,000 to 15,000.

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  CHAHINE:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Thank you.

          8                 No further questions.  Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 And we'll now hear from the

         11  Department of Homeless Services.

         12                 The Committee is back in session.

         13  And we eagerly wait the testimony of the brand new

         14  Commissioner of the Department of Homeless Services,

         15  Robert Hess.  And he gets one free pass of easy

         16  questions for is first appearance.  Maybe.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Chair Weprin,

         18  I'd just like to join welcoming Commissioner Hess.

         19  We appreciate the success you had in Philadelphia,

         20  and we look forward, all of us, to working with you

         21  and welcome you to New York.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you so much

         23  Mr. Chairman. It's really an honor for me to be here

         24  today.  And an honor to have this opportunity in the

         25  great City of New York.  So we look forward to
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          2  working with both Committees, and all of Council in

          3  the pursuit of our joint goal of ending homelessness

          4  in this great City.

          5                 I have with me today, to my right,

          6  our Deputy Commissioner for Fiscal, Steve Puck, who

          7  is running for some of those softball questions; and

          8  also our Assistant Commissioner for Budget, Lula

          9  Urquhart.  As well as a number of other talented

         10  staff have joined us today to answer all of the

         11  things at day 12, I'm not yet prepared to answer.

         12  But we'll do our best.

         13                 I am very pleased to testify about

         14  topics, that as you know, have been the focus of my

         15  career.  Efforts to assist the poor and vulnerable

         16  move toward independence and self sufficiency.

         17  Before becoming Commissioner, I was Philadelphia's

         18  Deputy Managing Director for Special Needs Housing.

         19  I developed Philadelphia's 10 year plan to end

         20  homelessness, reduced the number of individuals

         21  living on the streets by over 60 percent, and

         22  created Housing First programs to move chronically

         23  homeless individuals directly from the street to

         24  permanent housing.

         25                 I look forward to leading what is
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          2  widely considered the largest and most sophisticated

          3  shelter system in the country, and to continuing

          4  Mayor Bloomberg Administration's efforts to reduce

          5  homelessness.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  testify before you today on the Fiscal Year '07

          8  budget.  I'd like to touch upon the agency's

          9  progress in implementing the Mayor's five- year

         10  action plan, uniting for solutions beyond shelter,

         11  including street homelessness, prevention services,

         12  Housing Stability Plus, and reductions in the

         13  shelter census.  I will also briefly discuss the

         14  agency's new initiatives, and the Executive Budget.

         15                 As you know, DHS has recently

         16  announced the results of the City's second Citywide

         17  Homeless Outreach Population Estimate, or HOPE.  The

         18  HOPE 2006 survey estimated that 3,843 unsheltered

         19  individuals are living on our streets.  A 13 percent

         20  decrease in street homelessness since last year's

         21  count.  This number represents 1,021 individuals in

         22  Manhattan; 778 in Brooklyn; 211 in Staten Island; 66

         23  in Queens; 551 in the Bronx; and 1,216 in subway

         24  cars and stations.  When comparing the street

         25  homeless population to the general population, New
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          2  York City's rate of street homelessness remains

          3  among the lowest of any major city for which

          4  similarly comprehensive street count data was

          5  available and confirmed, including Miami Dade

          6  County, Phoenix, San Francisco, and Los Angeles

          7  County.

          8                 The reduction in street homelessness

          9  is promising. To reach the five- year plan's

         10  ambitious targets, we are focusing our street

         11  outreach work in moving people off the streets and

         12  into housing.  The agency will employ an new Housing

         13  First approach to outreach, with the goal of

         14  stabilizing individuals by placing them directly

         15  into permanent housing, and providing services that

         16  lead to recovery, stability, and independence.

         17                 Over the last year, outreach teams

         18  have set up community- based networks in high- need

         19  areas.  These collaboratives bring together

         20  providers such as drop- in centers, soup kitchens,

         21  churches, and hospitals to share information, with a

         22  goal of placing street homeless individuals into

         23  transitional or permanent housing.

         24                 I am excited about these initiatives,

         25  and their positive impact on the most vulnerable New
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          2  Yorkers.  Too many individuals and families enter

          3  shelter each year, without receiving the services

          4  that might have helped them remain housed.  The City

          5  targets high- risk communities, and uses data to

          6  identify high risk households, delivering timely

          7  assistance to help many avoid homelessness.

          8                 During the Preliminary Budget hearing

          9  in March, Acting Commissioner Winter described the

         10  agency's prevention program, "Home Base".  I am

         11  proud to announce that Home Base has now being

         12  nationally recognized for these efforts.  Harvard

         13  University's John F. Kennedy School of Government

         14  has named Home Base as a finalist in the Innovations

         15  in American Government Award, given by the Ashe

         16  Institute for Democratic Governance and Innovation.

         17                 Started in September, 2004, Home Base

         18  is a $12 million program that has helped almost

         19  4,000 clients avoid homelessness.  Nonprofit

         20  partners work with at- risk families and single

         21  adults to assist them in stabilizing their housing

         22  situation before they reach the point of needing

         23  emergency shelter.  Home Base offices are located in

         24  six neighborhoods, with high utilization rates, and

         25  offer flexible services designed to meet the needs
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          2  of the individual clients.  The most frequently used

          3  services and referrals include job training and job

          4  search assistance; entitlements advocacy; assistance

          5  with legal action and housing relocation; and in

          6  select cases, financial assistance for the payment

          7  of rent arrears or brokers' fees.

          8                 The best news is that families and

          9  adults seen by Home Base case workers are

         10  overwhelmingly able to avoid shelter stays.  Of the

         11  almost 4,000 families and single adults served by

         12  the program, 95 percent are housed and out of

         13  shelter.  Home Base is also decreasing the number of

         14  households who enter the shelter system in the

         15  communities they serve.  When comparing 2005 with

         16  the previous year, Home Based neighborhoods saw a 12

         17  percent decline in shelter entry, while the rest of

         18  the City saw a seven percent decline.  This

         19  represents a five percent greater decline for

         20  prevention communities, after the program's first

         21  full year of operation.

         22                 Furthermore, before its

         23  implementation, residents of the six Home Base

         24  community districts constituted 24 percent of family

         25  shelter entrance.  So far this year, residents of
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          2  Home Base community districts constitute only 20

          3  percent of family shelter entrance.  This data

          4  indicates that there is much to be optimistic about,

          5  in the fight to prevent homelessness.

          6                 During March, 2006 Preliminary Budget

          7  hearing, Acting Commissioner Winter reported that

          8  the Housing Stability Plus has been successful in

          9  placing families into permanent housing.  I am

         10  pleased to report that data continues to look good.

         11  Since the inception of the program in December,

         12  2004, a total of 6,940 clients have signed leases

         13  for permanent housing.  This number represents 6,023

         14  families with children; 407 single adults; and 2,010

         15  adult families.  Clients who are moving out have

         16  overwhelmingly been able to maintain their

         17  permanency.  From December 17, 2004 to May 29, 2006,

         18  94 families have returned, and were found eligible

         19  for shelter: Eighty- five families with children and

         20  nine adult families.  In addition, four single

         21  adults have returned to shelter.  The overall data

         22  is encouraging, and marks a triumph for each

         23  household, an opportunity to obtain a solid and

         24  stable home life.

         25                 In March, 2006, acting Commissioner
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          2  Winter described the declining numbers of adults and

          3  families in our shelters.  We are pleased to report

          4  that the number of adults and families in our

          5  shelters continues to decline.  These numbers

          6  represent very good news.  Based on the total number

          7  of individuals in shelter, the agency is meeting our

          8  five- year plan targets.

          9                 Since November, 2003, the month when

         10  the total shelter population was at its peak, the

         11  total shelter system is decreased from an average of

         12  38,591 individuals to 31,306 individuals in April of

         13  2006.  This represents a 19 percent decrease.

         14  Today, there are over 7,200 fewer New Yorkers in

         15  shelter on average each day, than at the time of the

         16  peak shelter census, in November, 2003.

         17                 During this same period, the greatest

         18  decline in the shelter system has been among

         19  children.  From November of 2003 to April of 2006,

         20  the average number of children in shelter has

         21  decreased dramatically, from 16,840 to 11,732.  This

         22  decline means that there are nearly one third, or 30

         23  percent fewer children in shelter on average, than

         24  there were just two and a half years ago.          Over

         25  the same time, the average number of families in
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          2  shelter decreased from 9,183 to 7,877, or a decline

          3  of 14 percent.

          4                 The single adult population is also

          5  increased  -- decreased.  In April of 2006, there

          6  were 8,016 single adults in shelter on average each

          7  day.  This translates to over 300 fewer single

          8  adults in shelter than in November, 2003.

          9                 We will continue to update you as we

         10  meet the milestones of our five- year plan.

         11                 I would like to briefly discuss

         12  highlights the agency's new funding for Fiscal Year

         13   '07, aimed to create new programs or expand

         14  existing programs to better serve people

         15  experiencing homelessness in our City.

         16                 Under a new program, Moving On, DHS

         17  will provide incentives for supportive housing

         18  providers to assist stabilized clients to move to

         19  independent living, thereby creating capacity for

         20  less stable clients who may be either living on the

         21  streets or in shelter.  DHS will provide a $2,000

         22  payment to providers when they help stabilized

         23  clients find housing, and transition to a new

         24  apartment.  In addition, the provider may use the

         25  stipend to make small repairs to the units, to
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          2  prepare it for the new client.  This project was

          3  funded as a pilot in 2007.

          4                 The agency will also receive

          5  additional budget dollars to expand and existing

          6  program, Homeward Bound.  Under contract with the

          7  Salvation Army, the Homeward Bound Program provides

          8  relocation assistance to approximately 400 shelter

          9  clients per year.  The agency will expand the

         10  program to serve 750 clients per year.  Under the

         11  program, the shelter client is relocated to a more

         12  stable environment in their home community,

         13  including reunification with family members.

         14  Homeward Bound clients are also given referrals to

         15  the Salvation Army branches at their area of

         16  relocation, ensuring its clients continue to receive

         17  necessary social services.  The Salvation Army will

         18  also provide three- month follow up for the clients.

         19                 The last, the agency has received

         20  funding for additional legal staff, including nine

         21  new attorneys and one administrative staff analyst,

         22  to ensure that the agency maintains the highest

         23  legal standards in implementing our procedures at

         24  PATH intake.  The cost for this additional staff is

         25  &594,000.

                                                            132

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 Finally, I would like to briefly

          3  focus on the Fiscal Year '07 Executive Budget.  For

          4  the current year, Fiscal Year '06, the Department's

          5  expense budget is $767 million.  For the next year,

          6  Fiscal Year '07, the budget is $696 million.  Of the

          7  $696 million, $309 million are City funds; $204

          8  million State funds; and $148 million in Federal

          9  funds.  Four million is grant funding.  And $31

         10  million is inter- City funding.  The $696 million

         11  allocates $284 million to services for single

         12  adults; $356 million to services for families; and

         13  $56 million to supportive services.

         14                 The DHS Capital Plan for the five-

         15  year period, Fiscal Year '06 through Fiscal Year

         16   '10, is currently $196 million. Capital projects

         17  for homeless families total $90 million; projects

         18  for single adults total $81 million; $21 million has

         19  been allocated for support services; and $4 million

         20  for City Council- funded projects.

         21                 In conclusion, I would like to thank

         22  you again for giving me the opportunity to speak on

         23  the various agency initiatives, aimed to stabilize

         24  New York's most vulnerable residents.  We are now

         25  prepared to answer any questions you may have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you

          3  Commissioner.  In continuing with my giving you a

          4  softball question, have you found permanent housing

          5  yourself from Philadelphia?  Or are you still among

          6  the homeless population?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I am temporarily

          8  among the homeless.  But that will end this weekend.

          9    So my transitional housing is working out very

         10  well, thanks to some of the fine systems New York

         11  and the tight housing market, but I look forward, as

         12  many of our clients will, to moving into permanent

         13  housing this weekend.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Well we

         15  look forward to that as well.  Chair deBlasio.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you very

         17  much Chair Weprin.  Let me raise, Commissioner, some

         18  issues from your testimony.  And I know our

         19  colleague, Annabel Palma has questions as well.

         20                 I'll say it at the outset, and again,

         21  a warm New York welcome.  And part of how we show

         22  our warmth is to be critical and difficult.  So you

         23  know you're in the family then.  So first I will say

         24  that in terms of the count, and I appreciate you

         25  gave the positive analysis of how we compare to
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          2  other cities, and I don't doubt some of those other

          3  cities have very, very extensive problems.  I do

          4  think there's been a consistent critique of the

          5  manner in which we do our count.  And I think it

          6  would be worth you wile to sit down with some of the

          7  advocates and academics and others who have raised

          8  the concern about whether our count is accurate.

          9  Whether it's the right kind of methodology.

         10                 But that being said, certainly there

         11  has been real progress, and I think a lot of us are

         12  believers that the preventative efforts have been

         13  you know, a lot of the reason, besides other

         14  factors, maybe an improved economy, other bigger

         15  factors, the preventative efforts have really

         16  helped.

         17                 And I see that you are very strongly

         18  embracing the Home Base approach.  Some years ago,

         19  the Council was pushing preventative programs.  I

         20  think there might have been less receptiveness on

         21  the Administration side.  I think their consensus

         22  developed over time.  But, at the same time, there's

         23  always a group of preventative programs that seem to

         24  end up being cut in the Mayor's budget proposals,

         25  that oftentimes, the Council has to restore.  So I
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          2  guess I want to raise to you, if there's now a

          3  growing body of evidence that prevention works,

          4  maybe we're discussing sort of the fine tuning of

          5  prevention, or how we implement prevention, but I

          6  don't think we're discussing any longer the question

          7  whether prevention works.

          8                 Why would the Administration not be

          9  preserving all preventative programs, in hopes of

         10  raising even further that number of folks that we

         11  keep out of shelter, or conversely, if you have a

         12  particular model that you think is the right one,

         13  why aren't we not moving resources out of those

         14  other programs into this model, but increasing the

         15  amount we're spending on the model?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, we

         17  share your view that anything we can do to help

         18  prevent people from entering the shelter system is

         19  the right thing to do.  Whether that be prevention

         20  or diversion on the front end; whether that be

         21  Housing First options for people living on our

         22  streets; whether that be a potential expansion over

         23  time of some of the existing prevention programs

         24  that we're operating that are showing a lot of

         25  promise.            Now clearly, before you take
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          2  programs of scale, you have to do your due

          3  diligence, and ensure that you're taking the scale

          4  of programs that really are having a solid impact on

          5  the reduction of number of people entering the

          6  shelter system.  And we're going through that

          7  process now.

          8                 Our prevention programs are showing a

          9  lot of promise.  We're very excited by them.  And I

         10  think we'll be having this conversation over the

         11  next several months, as to what we do with them in

         12  the future.  I think it will be a little bit

         13  premature today to sit here and say that we need to

         14  take something to scale at this point.  But we are

         15  very encouraged by the early results. We're going to

         16  monitor our existing programs very carefully.  We're

         17  going to take a hard look at other prevention

         18  alternatives that we think can be helpful.  And

         19  we're going to do everything we can to help avoid

         20  people that enter our shelter system and to move

         21  people off the streets.

         22                 With respect to whether the number of

         23  3,800 is the exact number or not, you know, we'll

         24  take a look at that.  And we'll certainly take a

         25  look at the methodology.  I frankly have been pretty
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          2  impressed with the methodology, and the fact that we

          3  were able to find I guess 85 percent of the decoys

          4  this year, versus 70 percent last year, I think was

          5  encouraging.

          6                 But whatever the number is, it's too

          7  many.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: And we have a goal

         10  of reducing dramatically the number of people on the

         11  streets, and we will work every day to make that

         12  happen.  I will tell you, that in my 12 days on the

         13  job, I've been out on the streets two night already,

         14  and have two more scheduled.  And we will continue

         15  to do that.  This is going to be an emphasis.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I appreciate

         17  that.  I guess I'm saying very squarely to you, I am

         18  very happy we all agree prevention works.  And I'm

         19  very, very happy, and I give  --  when she was

         20  Commissioner, Commissioner, then Commissioner Gibbs

         21  a lot of credit for the systematic way she developed

         22  it.  And I think it's getting recognized for a good

         23  reason.  But I have never understood the logic

         24  whereby we cut prevention efforts in other agencies

         25  simultaneously, that obviously are focused on
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          2  stopping homelessness.  You know, there's a whole

          3  debate, which I'm sure someone will clue you in on,

          4  as to whether they belong in other agencies or under

          5  the umbrella of DHS.  But we can say with assurance,

          6  that year in and year out, the programs are cut by

          7  the Administration, or don't  --  not baselined, I

          8  should say.  And then the Council puts money in for

          9  them.  The exact type of program you discuss here,

         10  legal assistance and rental subsidy.

         11                 I had countless conversations with

         12  folks in your agency about if there was a desire to

         13  change the structuring, that we're very open to

         14  that.  But what we don't understand is why you would

         15  reduce resources of something that's working, and

         16  ultimately saves the taxpayers tremendous

         17  investment, because we know that a stay in shelter

         18  is much more costly than anything we could do in the

         19  way of preventative spending.

         20                 So I'm simply  --  I don't expect a

         21  final answer from you.  I'm going to challenge you

         22  by saying I don't think we should be cutting

         23  preventative services to stop homelessness in any

         24  agency.  And if we think they're not structured

         25  properly, then let's take this positive experience
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          2  with Home Base and talk about where we're going to

          3  go to unify and integrate all of this.

          4                 Housing Stability Plus, you mentioned

          5  what you regard as some of the positives of the

          6  program.  Every single one of us in the Council

          7  always praises the fact that the Administration

          8  initiated the program.  And how it was a clear

          9  response to the crisis of Section 8.  I do think

         10  there's tremendous concern about the structuring of

         11  the program, with the step down, the annual step

         12  down, and what that actually does to families trying

         13  to make the transition to self sufficiency.  And

         14  whether it's realistic for landlord and tenant

         15  alike.  I certainly think it does not suggest the

         16  same carefulness, or sensitivity, or whatever word

         17  you  --  individualization, that the Home Base

         18  Program obviously has utilized to great effect.

         19                 Home Base takes each client and

         20  figures out what they need, and helps them get it,

         21  and look at the impact on the family and look at the

         22  impact for the taxpayer.  While on Housing Stability

         23  Plus, there's one- size- fits- all.

         24                 So I'm concerned that your good

         25  results in year one, that's natural.  But when you
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          2  start to have your step downs, which are happening

          3  right now, then you're going to see trouble.  What

          4  do you say to that?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well Mr. Chairman,

          6  I appreciate your concerns.  We actually are in

          7  receipt of a letter requesting that we respond to a

          8  whole series of questions on this issue.  I have

          9  asked staff to bring me up to speed on this one very

         10  quickly. And get you those answers in writing just

         11  as rapidly as we can. We're going to do our internal

         12  due diligence on this.  But we'll get you a response

         13  just as rapidly as we can to each and every question

         14  you've asked.  And we'll be as forthright with that

         15  as we can.

         16                 I will tell you, that I am encouraged

         17  by the fact that almost 7,000 individuals have

         18  signed leases.  And as you said, we've seen just

         19  over 90 folks that have returned to shelter.  So the

         20  initial numbers look very good.  Now do we need to

         21  closely monitor as we get to these next phases?

         22  Absolutely, we do.  Do we need to be prepared to

         23  take action on what we see with respect to what

         24  happens next?  Of course.  And we'll get you those

         25  answers in writing just as quickly as we can.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I appreciate

          3  it.  And what we're saying fundamentally is, if

          4  there is evidence that the generic step down is not

          5  working for a substantial number of families, I hope

          6  we're all going to take another look at how make the

          7  program work.  Again, the motive was great.  But

          8  we're questioning whether it's going to work in day-

          9  to- day life.

         10                 We had a  --  an example, I'm sure

         11  you have been, or will be briefed on the young lady

         12  who was here before us, Canissa Henley (phonetic),

         13  who had a very difficult experience trying to get

         14  self sufficiency.  Her and her five year old

         15  daughter.  And ending up sort of in the Catch 22 of

         16  the HSP program, including the difficulties faced

         17  when someone on public assistance is trying to

         18  better themselves and get some kind of income coming

         19  in, and the sort of unexpected result that could

         20  have with them losing HSP in the bargain, despite a

         21  modest income.  So we'd certainly be interested over

         22  time in your response to that case as a sort of

         23  model of some of the challenges this program faces.

         24                 Now specifically, I've spoken to you

         25  about this briefly, we believe there's an important
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          2  role for the State of New York here.  And we want to

          3  work with you on that.  Because the missing link to

          4  some extent is helping folks who are trying to get

          5  self sufficiency by getting income beyond public

          6  assistance.  And can you give us any kind of update

          7  on where the discussions with the State stand on

          8  that kind of providing some kind of transitional

          9  assistance?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I could tell you

         11  that there have been some ongoing discussions with

         12  the State that the  --  my understanding is that the

         13  response from the State at this point has not been

         14  an encouraging one.  But we're going to continue to

         15  pursue those discussions.  And look for every

         16  opportunity to do so.  And that we are having some

         17  internal discussions with OMB on this very issue.

         18  We do share the Chairman's concern with respect to

         19  the issue of income.  Certainly, if we're going to

         20  look to reduce subsidies over time, there's got to

         21  be a way to pay the rent.  And so, we share your

         22  concern on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you all.

         24    Anything we can do to join with you in appealing

         25  to the State, far be it from us to ever shine a
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          2  negative light on our friends in the State

          3  government, but sometimes that helps.  You don't

          4  have to respond to that, but I'll just tell you that

          5  this is a case where we  --  I think they owe New

          6  York City this assistance.

          7                 You also mention in your testimony

          8  the Homeward Bound program, which is something, I

          9  think I can say honestly, over the last four years,

         10  has not been highlighted previously in this type of

         11  testimony.  On paper, it sounds impressive, and yet,

         12  as I read it, I think I hear us saying  --  I think

         13  I hear you saying that this is an effort to

         14  facilitate people going to the community they

         15  originally come from.  And again, in principle, I

         16  could see why that might be good for some families,

         17  and it might be the right thing to do.  But the

         18  question I have is, are we truly trying to make sure

         19  that this is going to be a positive outcome for that

         20  family?  And I understand the financial

         21  ramifications.  Even the moral ramifications of this

         22  question, but I would hate to see a situation where

         23  we do this sort of common sense thing, and say,

         24  well, if someone can go back to you know, whatever

         25  state, Maryland, or whatever state or Pennsylvania,
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          2  to where their family is, wouldn't that make more

          3  sense for everyone concerned?  Well it might, if

          4  there's something  --  a place to receive them.  And

          5  if not, are we simply shunting the problem off to

          6  another jurisdiction?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well the short

          8  answer is that this is designed as a voluntary

          9  program, Mr. Chairman.  This one is for singles.  In

         10  order to be even voluntarily accepted for us to be

         11  able to provide you, through the Salvation Army,

         12  transportation back to your community of record, or

         13  where you want to go, there has to be a housing

         14  option for you there that we have checked out and

         15  people have agreed to receive you.  We're not going

         16  to be in the habit of sending people A, that don't

         17  want to go; or B, that don't have a place to stay

         18  when they get there, and create some burden for

         19  themselves and for the receiving jurisdiction.

         20  We're not going to do that.

         21                 But in addition, we've designed this

         22  program with the Salvation Army, taking, I think,

         23  kind of the extraordinary step of saying not only

         24  are we going to make sure that A, you want to go,

         25  and B, you have a place to go when you get there

                                                            145

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  that will accept you, but C, the Salvation Army is

          3  going to continue to provide social service follow

          4  up for three months.

          5                 And so I think in this program, we

          6  tried to be very thoughtful about ensuring that

          7  we're doing the right thing by the client, and that

          8  that client is going to get the support they need

          9  when they get there.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So the

         11  incentive, if you will, to the client is that the

         12  transportation cost is covered, and there is some

         13  kind of dynamic where they get assistance upon their

         14  arrival in the other location.  Is that the extent

         15  of the incentives.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well I think

         17  there's additional incentives.  In some cases,

         18  people have  --  if not burned, maybe hurt some

         19  relationships along the way, and sometimes, we can

         20  be a broker in that process, to get that you know,

         21  Aunt Jane to agree to allow somebody to stay there.

         22  And so I think there's a facilitative quality to

         23  this type of arrangement that makes sense for

         24  everybody concerned.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Look, I
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          2  appreciate that.  I mean, we all know the troubling

          3  stories of the past where jurisdictions sent their

          4  most troubled citizens to other places in the hopes

          5  those other places would take a problem off their

          6  plate. I don't hear you saying that, and I'm happy

          7  about that.  I think the crucial thing here is that

          8  there is actually work with the individual to make

          9  sure that they have an acceptable outcome.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: On your

         12  analysis of the Executive Budget, I just wanted  --

         13  this is a common sense question, but you have a very

         14  substantial decrease in your expense budget.  I am

         15  assuming that correlates to the decrease in your

         16  shelter population.  Is that the simple explanation?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It's never that

         18  simple Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: I tried.

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: But I'll ask the

         21  Deputy Commissioner Pock to address that for you.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: You're

         23  referring to I believe, the difference between the

         24  $767 million in '06, and the $696 million in '97.

         25  That's largely because  --  I think its ample.  We
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          2  only put grant funding into the budget when you're

          3  out of time.  So the '07  --  the '06 budget has the

          4  emergency shelter grant funding in it, and it has

          5  more community development block grant funding in

          6  it.  And all that funding isn't in '07 yet.

          7  We do that one year out at a time.

          8                 Another reason is, we have more PEGS,

          9  especially from the January plan, we had more PEGS,

         10  that hit '07.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So just as one

         12  easy comparison, in the 96, you say in the

         13  testimony, $309 is City.  Can you tell us how much

         14  was City in the '06 budget?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: In the

         16  January plan?  Or now?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right now.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: I can tell

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: While we're

         21  waiting Commissioner, I'll just try to understand

         22  what the real difference is, in terms of City

         23  investments.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: Sure.  The

         25  City's share in '07 is $308  --  I'm sorry, the
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          2  City's share in '06 was $332 million.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: All right.  So

          4  a smaller reduction, $23 million I guess, roughly,

          5  in City funds.  And so some of that is if you will,

          6  mechanical financing issues, but is some of this

          7  decrease because of your substantially smaller

          8  shelter population?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: Yes.  To

         10  the extent that the '07 January plan PEG was a

         11  reduction in shelter.  The gross was about $17

         12  million in the January plan.

         13                 There's other things.  For example,

         14  the Council Member items themselves are in the '06

         15  budget.  They're not yet in the '07 budget.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: And it is a

         18  mechanical thing.  Things carry forward.  There

         19  could have been things, either PEGS or new needs

         20  from years ago, that just carry forward.  There was

         21  an imbalance then, and they just carry forward.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  So in

         23  terms of your capacity to serve the people you're

         24  serving, it sounds like you're saying not much has

         25  changed in reality.  Except for the obvious that
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          2  maybe you have fewer people who need day- to- day

          3  services in the shelter system, that has been a

          4  decrease.  Otherwise, you're sort of operational

          5  capacity sounds like it's similar to the past.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  And

          8  then on your capital side  --  now this one, I find

          9  a little contradictory.  And again, I understand

         10  that the nature of capital planning and how far head

         11  we're looking, but, Commissioner, you're here to end

         12  homelessness, or greatly reduce it.  God bless you.

         13  There has been some progress.  Why are we spending

         14  at this high a capital level if we are  --  if we

         15  have some confidence that our shelter population is

         16  going to go down?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think the short

         18  answer, and then Deputy Commissioner will give you

         19  the details  --  I think the short answer is we

         20  still have a responsibility to our clients to

         21  provide high- quality, safe facilities for them, to

         22  the extent that they are still needed.  And so we'll

         23  look forward to the day when we can reduce the

         24  shelter capacity dramatically, but in the absence of

         25  being able to do that at this point, we still need
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          2  to ensure that we have a high- quality facilities

          3  across the board.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And in

          5  general, are these facilities convertible to

          6  permanent housing in the hopeful event that your

          7  shelter population drops so consistently, and

          8  substantially, that you really no longer need them

          9  for shelter?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That probably

         11  varies a little from facility to facility.  But as

         12  you can imagine Mr. Chairman, to the extent that you

         13  have a strong facilities infrastructure, to any

         14  building, it does make it less expensive generally

         15  to convert it to permanent housing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So is it

         17  possible, in any kind of percentage terms, to say

         18  how much of what you intend to create with this $196

         19  million is convertible to permanent housing? If it's

         20  no longer needed for emergency shelter?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I don't know that

         22  we've done that analysis at that level yet Mr.

         23  Chairman, but it's something we can look at.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Well I'm going

         25  to not put this on you, because you're 12 days on
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          2  the job, but I would like to put it on the folks

          3  that have been here a while.  That's a kind of

          4  interesting answer to me.  I would assume that would

          5  be a very fundamental fact to know, given a plan to

          6  reduce homelessness.  I mean, why would you build

          7  all these facilities that are not convertible?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: The Capital

          9  Budget actually includes very little for actually

         10  for building facilities. There's a lot for

         11  maintenance and upkeep of the existing facilities.

         12  That's the majority of it.  There is  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: When you say

         14  majority, can you put a dollar figure to what's new

         15  building to what's maintenance and  --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: The only

         17  new building that I'm aware of is  --  as was stated

         18  in the Mayor's budget message -  there is $52

         19  million for the building of a new family intake

         20  center.  And I believe that's the major new building

         21    --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And where are

         23  you doing  -- so the other roughly $150 million if

         24  it's being used to upgrade or take care of

         25  maintenance, again, is there any emphasis on trying
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          2  to adapt these buildings for hopeful permanent use

          3  as you're doing those projects?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: Absolutely.

          5    We're working with our Facilities and Maintenance

          6  Division, our Buildings Division in DHS.  And as we

          7  proceed through the five- year plan, we're working

          8  with them to identify which shelters would be good

          9  for permanent housing and that would be much less

         10  likely that we'd be putting capital repairs into

         11  those shelters.  And on the one hand.  And on the

         12  other hand, we keep that in mind as we you know, as

         13  we get ready to close shelters and convert shelters

         14  and put them into permanent housing, some of them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Can we get a

         16  specific answer in terms of the dollar figure, and

         17  sites that are being anticipated for potential

         18  permanent housing?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes Mr. Chairman.

         20  We'll pull that together for you.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: Let me say

         22  one other thing.  The other  --  just in terms of

         23  the Capital Budget, it also includes things other

         24  than buildings.  And it's a relatively small amount

         25  that technology can be capital- eligible, and
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          2  vehicles can be capital- eligible.  It's a

          3  relatively small part of the budget, but it is

          4  capital.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you.

          6  And one more question on the overall numbers.  How

          7  much of your '06 budget was grant dollars?  And I

          8  don't know if you can project now for '07, but just

          9  as another way of comparing the two years.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: In '06, we

         11  had $6.3 million of emergency shelter grant; and

         12  coincidentally, $6.3 million of community

         13  development block grant money.  And in the '07

         14  budget, there's already $4 million of the community

         15  development block grant.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And can you

         17  project on the other category?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK:  The EST

         19  will probably be about the same.  They will both end

         20  up being the same amount.  You can roll grant money.

         21    So they will both end up being the same amount in

         22   '07 as they were in '06.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Lastly

         24  Commissioner, I know that you know that the Scatter

         25  Site program has been a great concern.  And again,
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          2  an area where I think we ultimately reach some

          3  consensus between the Council and the

          4  Administration, that it was a program whose time had

          5  come and gone.  Particularly in terms of what the

          6  taxpayers was getting for their money, and what the

          7  client was experiencing in terms of quality of

          8  housing.  Can you give us an update on how and when

          9  that program will be entirely and finally phased

         10  out?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I can Mr.

         12  Chairman.  I'm pleased to tell you that, as you

         13  know, we had over 2,092, 93 Scattered Site units at

         14  kind of the peak, when Acting Commissioner Winter

         15  testified in March.  That number was around 346, I

         16  think.  Today, that number is 299, I believe.  And

         17  by the end of this calendar year, that number will

         18  be zero.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: You're

         20  committing by the end of December, that the program

         21  will be phased out entirely.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's is my

         23  commitment to you Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: God bless

         25  America.  I'm very happy to hear that, and what
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          2  we'll hold you to that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I know you will.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Very good.

          5  Thank you Commissioner.  I'd like to turn now to

          6  Council Member Annabel Palma.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you Mr.

          8  Chair.  And welcome to New York Commissioner.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you

         10  Councilwoman.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: At last year's

         12  budget hearings, then Commissioner Linda Gibbs

         13  testified to the DHS improved system for determining

         14  eligibility for housing.  And today, you report that

         15  adults and families in your shelters continue to

         16  decline.  Is this decreased based on first time

         17  eligibility determination?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It is true that we

         19  have a reapplication procedure.  But a number of

         20  things have happened.  As you recall, the EAU is in

         21  the process of closing down.  The intake piece of

         22  EAU has moved to PATH.  And at the same time, we

         23  have implemented kind of a common sense

         24  reapplication procedure.  And so, there have been a

         25  host of things that have happened.  So I'm not sure
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          2  that I could tell you that any one thing has led to

          3  a decrease.  I think we have done a series of things

          4  that I hope have made our process a little more

          5  streamlined in some ways, a little more

          6  comprehensive in other ways.  On the family side of

          7  the system.  So a number of things have occurred.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.  Three

          9  months ago, DHS changed their policy in regards to

         10  temporary shelter.  Families that came in, some were

         11  eligible on the first time applications, others were

         12  found not to be eligible.  What happens to those

         13  families that were not found to be eligible?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well the families

         15  that were not found to be eligible have the ability

         16  to reapply, as I understand it, at any time.  And if

         17  they come into reapply, and at the time of the

         18  reapplication, they have presented an immediate

         19  need, then they're provided shelter.  If they do not

         20  present an immediate need at the time of

         21  reapplication, then that tells us that we believe

         22  that they have another place to stay.  And so, we

         23  ask them to stay at that location while the

         24  determination is made over the next 10 days.  And of

         25  course, we have a team that involves one case
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          2  worker, two field investigators, and an attorney,

          3  that are actively working with that family to make

          4  those determinations along the way, and in fact,

          5  there's even kind of a mid- point conference, I

          6  believe the five day point, to kind of make sure

          7  that we're looking at the right information, that we

          8  have complete information, and give that family a

          9  sense of what the likely outcome of the

         10  determination process is to be.

         11                 And so, it's a pretty rigorous and

         12  complete process. Not a fail- safe process, but one

         13  that I think is pretty rigorous.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And so are

         15  these families provided with temporary shelter?  Or

         16  they're forced out until a determination is being

         17  made on their behalf.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: To the extent that

         19  there is an immediate need, a finding that they have

         20  an immediate need for shelter, they are provided

         21  shelter.  To the extent that the determination is

         22  that they have a viable alternative to shelter, then

         23  the expectation is that they will take advantage of

         24  that viable alternative to shelter.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Now I know in
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          2  yesterday's Daily News, there was a huge article of

          3  some of these families that have gone through this

          4  process, were deemed not to be eligible, and then

          5  some I believe are not  --  were found, after they

          6  had either gone to court, or were able to go back to

          7  the EAU center to be eligible for shelter, because

          8  locations or the people that they were asked that

          9  they could stay with were not appropriate or

         10  adequate places for them to stay.  Now, in the

         11  Mayor's budget, there's $500,000 to fund more

         12  lawyers to litigate these types of cases.  What are

         13  those lawyers exactly going to be doing for these

         14  families?  All throughout this process.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Councilwoman, a

         16  couple of things. First, the lawyers, the $500,000

         17  you referred to in the budget, that hired lawyers,

         18  are not to litigate, I don't believe.  They are to

         19  support and assist as part of the intake team.  To

         20  make every effort we can to get it right.  And that

         21  team again, includes a case worker.  It includes two

         22  field investigators, and one attorney.  And we need

         23  to be able to make that determination as quickly as

         24  possible, but we also need to be as accurate and

         25  complete as we possibly can.  And so that is the
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          2  reason for those additional staffing requests, to

          3  make sure that we're doing our due diligence on the

          4  front end.

          5                 With respect to the story in the

          6  Daily News yesterday, I certainly share what I

          7  rather suspect you felt when you read that article,

          8  in terms of the outrages that those things happen.

          9  If in fact they did.  You know, without having case

         10  specific information that we can look at closely, I

         11  don't have an opinion on as to what was written

         12  there, although I found what was written very

         13  troubling.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I think my

         15  concern comes from --  I have been meeting with the

         16  advocates for homeless  --  for the homeless, and

         17  they have brought these cases to my attention prior

         18  to the article yesterday.  And I know that these

         19  families  -- if it wasn't for their advocacy and

         20  some monies that they had, and put them up in a

         21  hotel, they would have been in the street.  And I

         22  think my concern comes from that.  I don't expect,

         23  you know, DHS case workers or any of us to be

         24  perfect, but I believe that we strongly need to be

         25  committed to preventing these type of things. You
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          2  know, homelessness in our City, as we all know, is a

          3  huge issue, and while we're all working towards the

          4  same goal, I also believe that when a family comes

          5  before a City agency, or any of us, and tells us

          6  that there is the need, that we just need to be very

          7  cautious at how we deal with them and handle them.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I would agree with

          9  you Councilwoman.  We believe that any family that

         10  comes to us, that has an immediate need, we should

         11  meet that need.  While we determine eligibility.

         12  And that's why we've kind of taken the extraordinary

         13  steps of putting this team together, again, it

         14  includes the case worker, the two field

         15  investigators and the attorney, to be able to do our

         16  best to get that determination right the first time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

         18  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Council Member

         20  Brewer and I have a quick follow up on Council

         21  Member Palma's questions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Welcome to New

         23  York.  I have a feeling that you've testified a lot

         24  before the Philadelphia City Council.  Because

         25  you're very good at it.  And I think Patrick Markey
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          2  (phonetic) has just met his match.  Do you know

          3  Patrick?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: You know, I've

          5  talked to Patrick on the phone, and look forward to

          6  the opportunity to meet.  The good news there is, I

          7  think we all have the same objectives in mind for

          8  people experiencing homelessness in our community.

          9  We look forward to working toward the end of those

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: He got married

         12  last week, so you could wish him good luck.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We will do that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: To a wonderful

         15  woman.

         16                 I am interested in the  --  for the

         17  HSP just to pick up Housing and Stability Plus, it

         18  does seem to me, and certainly some families have

         19  indicated to us, we could figure out a way of giving

         20  support to those who start a job, to indicate that

         21  we do support them in their endeavors, and to deal

         22  with the step problem that would be  --  I think

         23  that would solve the problem.  So maybe under your

         24  new initiatives, that could be something that could

         25  be done  That seems to be the problem.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We will certainly

          3  do everything we can Councilwoman, to assist all of

          4  our families to increase their income through

          5  whatever means we can help achieve that. Because

          6  that leads us towards our highest and best outcomes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's where

          8  their problem is on that one.  I have something

          9  locally that I think may have more general

         10  ramifications.  We have the inter- generational on

         11  West End Avenue and 82nd Street.  It is a wonderful

         12  family homeless program. Individuals with small

         13  children.  The problem is it is often not full, in

         14  terms of the numbers of beds not having families in

         15  them. And it's probably because of the very young

         16  children, so it has to be a certain kind of person.

         17  It's an unusual set up. It's a regular apartment

         18  building that happens to have families set aside,

         19  and the advantage to it is, with it comes, to be

         20  very honest with you, an extraordinarily good

         21  school, right in the neighborhood on the West Side,

         22  and also a good array of services.  Good follow up

         23  et cetera.  So I think one of the issues is  --  and

         24  this was a good intention under Linda Gibbs, was

         25  neighborhood- based services. Because we do want to
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          2  have individuals from the neighborhood who perhaps,

          3  could end up getting supported in the neighborhood,

          4  and then children could stay in the same schools et

          5  cetera.  Certainly, that was a goal.  And this is an

          6  example where, because the West Side has changed,

          7  there aren't as many families who are homeless, and

          8  so people come, not necessarily can come here

          9  because it's not in the neighborhood.  I just

         10  mention this because as the City changes, some of

         11  these programs need to change in order  --  and it's

         12  a wonderful program, so I just hope that you will

         13  talk to the Director, and she has some ideas about

         14  how to change the program to figure out a way of it

         15  being more accommodating.

         16                 But again, it's one of these

         17  situations where you don't want to throw the baby

         18  out with the bath water.  You have a great program,

         19  how do you adapt if for some of the needs that you

         20  may have, that she could address.  So again, it's a

         21  small program, but it's an example of where you need

         22  to be flexible, just like in HSP.

         23                 My other question is, the Housing

         24  Authority.  How are they helping you with housing?

         25  I don't know the status.  I understand that they
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          2  have major pressures from Washington, as I'm sure

          3  you experienced in Philadelphia.  This particular

          4  Administration is very anti- public housing.  We

          5  have great respect for what NYCHA tried to do in our

          6  City, and I just didn't know if there was a change

          7  in the families whom they're accepting from the

          8  shelter system, or how that's working out.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I have actually

         10  been, Councilwoman, very encouraged by the early

         11  briefings I've had, and the opportunity to meet with

         12  the head of the Housing Authority earlier today.

         13  I'm very encouraged that they're willing to work

         14  with us to meet some of our needs.  And we do have

         15  needs, especially to supplement some of our

         16  prevention side, that we're very serious about.  And

         17  so, I think that we're going to have a very good

         18  working relationship with the Housing Authority,

         19  that's going to translate into fewer families and

         20  individuals in our shelter system.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because I know

         22  they do try to pick up individuals who come from the

         23  system, and also of course, they don't usually evict

         24  somebody unless it's a real challenging situation.

         25                 Just on the idea of prevention  --
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          2  again, this is more of a Citywide focus, it's not

          3  just your problem  --  but the idea is not to have

          4  people come in to your system.  That's the hope.

          5  And given the housing pressures in the City of New

          6  York right now, as you know, there  --  I'm sure

          7  extensive in Philadelphia  --  they are very

          8  extensive now.  And this would be people who either

          9  cannot afford to pay the rent, because it is so

         10  high, or who, to be very honest with you, are paying

         11  the rent, but owners find a way to evict people.

         12  And we are all trying.  There's different City HRA-

         13  1 shots et cetera.  There are   --  I think we know

         14  most of the programs by heart.  But I do think that

         15  your voice needs to be very loud.  We kept

         16  pressuring Linda Gibbs for the same in intra- agency

         17  discussions about making those programs perhaps

         18  improving them, streamlining them, figuring out ways

         19  that the court system  --  that includes housing

         20  court in this case  --  anti eviction programs are

         21  strengthened.  Every single year we have to make

         22  sure that they're there.  In terms of the City

         23  Council's dance as Council Member Weprin calls it.

         24                 But that's the way to keep people out

         25  of your shelters.  And in this City, we have one

                                                            166

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  industry, it's called real estate.  And that's what

          3  we have.  And the question is, how can you help us

          4  with some of those anti- eviction programs?   All of

          5  us are experiencing many people coming into the

          6  office.  We're taking advantage of every program we

          7  can find.  But we could use your voice in the intra-

          8  agencies discussions on this issue.

          9                 You know, HPD administers them, but

         10  they don't end up in HPD's hands.  People are

         11  evicted who don't have a place to go.  They're going

         12  to end up in your system.  So we need a voice in

         13  that arena.  So I'm asking you for that.

         14                 And then just finally, obviously, the

         15  question for wonderful institutions, religious

         16  institutions, do a huge amount for this community.

         17  Volunteers, the institutions, they're phenomenal.

         18  And I do think there's still though, many

         19  individuals who understandably, for whatever reason,

         20  stay on the steps, you know, are out in the

         21  community.  And I just wanted to know  --  I know

         22  for instance, there's a good Manhattan Bowery

         23  Project has this contract I believe, for Manhattan.

         24  Other nonprofits elsewhere. And I just think you

         25  should have a discussion not only with them, but
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          2  also with some of these religious institutions who

          3  are trying to do the right thing, right?  These are

          4  people  --  there are two ways that the institution

          5  approaches it.  One is, they participate with the

          6  partnerships, you know, in terms of that incredibly

          7  you know, committed individual, who is sleeping

          8  overnight, religious institution providing support,

          9  it's phenomenal.  And then many of the institutions

         10  have food pantries and soup kitchens.  Again,

         11  terrific.  I think they are challenged sometimes by

         12  so many individuals also sleeping on the steps,

         13  which is legal.  And the community, the police

         14  getting involved, nonprofits trying to work with the

         15  mentally ill getting involved.  There's a lot of

         16  discussion that goes on.  And I think everybody is

         17  trying to do the right thing.  But it could use some

         18  intervention.

         19                 I know we have many, many discussions

         20  like that in the neighborhood about what's the right

         21  thing to do to deal with the neighborhood that

         22  doesn't want people there, to be honest with you.

         23  Where the religious institution that doesn't want

         24  individuals who are dangerous there, but want to try

         25  to do the right thing for those who are not
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          2  dangerous.  But there are also very large numbers.

          3                 So I do think it needs perhaps more

          4  discussion as to with the community, as to how we

          5  should all be on the same page. I just throw that

          6  out, because it's an ongoing discussion, and maybe

          7  you could have some thoughts  --  obviously

          8  protecting civil liberties, protecting people's

          9  rights, and at the same time, thinking about the

         10  neighborhoods.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Councilwoman, I

         12  appreciate your comments and your thoughts and your

         13  questions.  The reality is that we are all focused I

         14  hope, on the Mayor's vision of reducing the number

         15  of people who live on our streets by at least two

         16  thirds, the number of people living in our shelters

         17  by at least two thirds over the course of the five-

         18  year plan.  That means that we're going to have to

         19  think differently.  That means that we're going to

         20  have to act differently in a number of ways, and it

         21  doesn't mean that we're going to violate anybody's

         22  rights.

         23                 What it means is, that we need to

         24  think  --  we need to be smart about how to support

         25  people in our City that are currently experiencing

                                                            169

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  homelessness, but not enable.  And we have to

          3  provide great service, but also look towards some

          4  levels of personal responsibility.  And so, it is a

          5  little bit of a balancing act that we'll be walking,

          6  and there is no blueprint for this work at this

          7  level.

          8                 And so, we will work closely with

          9  members of the faith- based community, and other

         10  folks from the community that are really trying to

         11  do great things, and really are doing some great

         12  work in our City.  And we need to be on the same

         13  page, working from the same book, working towards

         14  the same goals in order to get there.

         15                 And so we will be a visible, and I

         16  hope a loud voice out there helping bring the right

         17  constituencies together to support the Mayor's

         18  vision.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Thank

         20  you Council Member.  And Commissioner, one last

         21  point.  I think the concern Council Member Palma

         22  raised from  --  and using the Daily News article is

         23  just a way to focus on it  --  I mean, I guess I'm

         24  concerned because I'm not hearing enough fail- safes

         25  in the way you're doing the assessments of folks who
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          2  are looking for shelter. I fully appreciate why you

          3  have tried to  --  the agency has tried to create a

          4  system that they regard as more rigorous  --  but on

          5  the other  --  by the same token, you could look at

          6  this report, it doesn't sound like we are taking

          7  into account extenuating circumstances.  And I would

          8  think any situation where someone doesn't have an

          9  absolutely verifiable place to go, would be one

         10  example.  And I certainly think if you had a   --

         11  it mentions here a mother with disabled children  --

         12    What is the kind of override here that allows you

         13  to say, okay, by our normal standards, these folks

         14  may not qualify, but we need to do an exceptional

         15  thing to give them a bridge while we figure out what

         16  to do?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well Mr. Chairman,

         18  in addition to the kind of rigorous process that

         19  I've described here today, we also have the ability

         20  for some managerial discretion, and we try to err on

         21  the side of the client.  But with respect again, to

         22  the cases that are alleged in this New York Daily

         23  News article, I think we have to take a close look

         24  at that, and try to figure out who these folks are,

         25  and what really happened.  I think what you're
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          2  reading here is troubling, but it's one side of a

          3  story.

          4                 I don't frankly know, sitting here

          5  today, what the other side of that story is, but

          6  we're going to do our best to try to understand

          7  that, to the extent that through that investigation,

          8  we are able to determine some additional things that

          9  we should be doing, or some modifications that

         10  should be made.  We'll take a look at that.  It's

         11  not our intent to be turning away families that

         12  truly have no other place to go.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Well I just

         14  want to caution --  two points, then I'll be done.

         15  The first point is  --  and I think we had this

         16  discussion with your predecessor at the witness

         17  stand, Commissioner Mattingly, and I think we

         18  learned, unfortunately, the hard way, how many

         19  checks and balances we need in terms of preventing

         20  child abuse.  And now, I think it's fair to say, as

         21  a result of tragedy, there is a much more careful

         22  system to make sure that a report or indicators are

         23  followed up on.  I think you could take that same

         24  concept and apply it here, if you have, for example,

         25  in the case of Mr. Green and Ms. Dejesus, if you

                                                            172

          1  FINANCE, GENERAL WELFARE AND WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  have folks who, one part of the bureaucracy thinks

          3  may have a place to go, but then there's evidence

          4  that maybe they don't, that says there needs to be a

          5  higher level of review to be sure that these folks

          6  are not ultimately being put on the street.

          7                 And I will just note, because you

          8  haven't had the joy of being around this Committee

          9  for the last four years, but I'll tell you, we've

         10  focused a lot on the question of domestic violence.

         11  And we are particularly concerned, and have been for

         12  a long time, with domestic violence, and I would say

         13  with child abuse as well, that the inner connection

         14  between DHS and agencies that deal with those

         15  problems has not been so great.

         16                 And we had a very sad situation where

         17  a child died as a result of child abuse, pushing two

         18  years now ago, where a DHS worker had some evidence

         19  of a problem, and it's not clear really whether they

         20  understood how to report it or how to act on it.

         21  And you know, a child died that might have been  --

         22  a death that might have been prevented.

         23                 And we certainly have had real

         24  concerns about whether domestic violence victims are

         25  treated the way they should be, when they come for
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          2  intake.  And we've passed a law, actually, which

          3  ultimately the Mayor signed, to clarify the

          4  importance of emergency shelter for victims of

          5  domestic violence.

          6                 So I'm just flagging to you that

          7  whether every single detail is accurate or not in

          8  this article, there are some special categories that

          9  we are very, very sensitive about.  And we really

         10  need to know from you, over the coming months, that

         11  there are clear checks and balances to make sure

         12  that any of those folks are getting the benefit of

         13  the doubt.  You can always find later that they may

         14  have other options, but if you put them on the

         15  street, as you well know, you know, the results can

         16  be very, very negative.  So we'll be listening for

         17  that kind of level of care.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: And I appreciate

         19  that, Mr. Chairman, and I can assure you we'll give

         20  you that level of care and assurance to the degree

         21  we can over time.  I will also say that the issue of

         22  domestic violence is one that's near and dear to us

         23  as well.  And there is no question that especially

         24  women who enter shelter systems, not only in our

         25  City, but nationally, disproportionately have a high
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          2  level of experience with respect to domestic

          3  violence or sexual abuse.  It's something over the

          4  years that has not been the easiest issue to get to

          5  the bottom of, or even to identify at the front door

          6  of a shelter system, because people enter our system

          7  largely in crisis, and don't often want to divulge

          8  some of those kinds of issues.  And so, it's one

          9  that we have to be very sensitive to, and we need to

         10  be plugged into very carefully to support our

         11  clients as they make their way through the shelter

         12  system and deal with some of those tough issues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you very

         14  much Commissioner.  I'll turn it back to Chair

         15  Weprin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         17  Robert  --  Council Member Robert Jackson had one

         18  very, very brief question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I have one

         20  question. Whether it's brief or not depends on the

         21  answer.  But my question is, under the contract

         22  budget, Mayor Bloomberg signed into law, on December

         23  29, 2005, the Minority and Women- Owned Business

         24  legislation, which calls for contract, each agency,

         25  to achieve towards a goal in making sure that
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          2  minority and women- owned businesses have contracts

          3  with City services.  So where does your agency stand

          4  with respects to implementing the law on your

          5  contract budget, which you estimate to be about $510

          6  million?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Councilman, thank

          8  you for that question.  That's a particular area

          9  that I've not yet been briefed on.  But we'll move

         10  that briefing up the priority list quickly. That is

         11  an important issue.  I'll ask the Deputy

         12  Commissioner to respond to your specific question,

         13  but please know that for our agency, that will

         14  remain a high priority.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sure.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POCK: It is

         17  indeed a high priority.  And actually, it has been a

         18  high priority with us over a period of time.  The

         19  Assistant Commissioner for Contracts has actively

         20  pursued women and minority businesses.  And so, we

         21  are taking that up into another level now.  We put a

         22  plan together, we have all of the critical Deputy

         23  Commissioners throughout the agency, who manage

         24  contracts, and are putting plans into place so that

         25  we will do everything we can to increase that
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          2  segment of our contracts.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And which

          4  high level official in your agency is responsible

          5  for overseeing that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: I'm the

          7  Deputy Commissioner over the contract division.

          8  Yes.

          9                 COMMISSIONER JACKSON: So it's your

         10  responsibility?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER POLK: That's

         12  right.  I am the MWBE contact person in the agency.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And I'm sure

         14  that you're aware, if you're not, approximately a

         15  week ago, Mayor Bloomberg signed into law a

         16  disparate business enterprise legislation also. And

         17  so both of those pieces of legislation, which are

         18  now law, affect minority and women owned businesses,

         19  and other businesses that have been negatively

         20  impacted.  So I look forward to working with you

         21  with respects to that.  And not only as a member of

         22  the Finance Committee, but I Co- Chair the Black,

         23  Latino, and Asian Caucus, and that's a huge concern

         24  of ours.  There's 25 members out of this 51 members

         25  of the City Council that are members of the Black,
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          2  Latino, and Asian Caucus.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We'll be happy to

          4  work with you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

          6  very much.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  That

          8  concludes this portion of the Finance and General

          9  Welfare Committee.  We will now be joint with the

         10  Committee on Civil Rights, Chaired by Council Member

         11  Larry Seabrook, and we'll hear from the Human Rights

         12  Commission.

         13                 Commissioner, we wish you luck in

         14  your new position, and in your search for permanent

         15  housing this weekend.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you

         19  Commissioner, and this meeting of the General

         20  Welfare Committee is now adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 4:20 p.m.)
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